
 

 

 

 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47 (POWELL RIVER) BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Committee of the Whole 

12:00 pm, Wednesday, September 13, 2023 
SCHOOL BOARD OFFICE 

 
                                        A G E N D A 

 
 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1.a) MOTION: “THAT the Committee of the Whole Meeting Agenda of September 13, 2023, be 
adopted as circulated.” 

 
 
2. STANDING COMMITTEES 

2.a)  Education & Strategic Planning Committee 
 i) 2023-2027 Draft Strategic Plan 
  
2.b) Finance & Facilities Committee 
 i)  2022/2023 Financial Statement Discussion & Analysis (FSD&A) 
 ii) 2022/2023 Draft Audited Financial Statements 
 iii) District Operations Report 
 
2.c) Policy Committee 
 i)  Trustee Code of Conduct Criteria 

 
 
3. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 3.a) N/A  
   
 
4. OTHER INFORMATION 

4.a) South Coast Branch – BCSTA Spring Learning Series 
4.b) VISTA Branch Event on October 13th & 14th 
4.c)  Board Work Plan – For Information 

  
ADJOURNMENT 
SH/attachments 

Board of Education (School District 47)   
4351 Ontario Avenue Powell River, BC V8A 1V3 Canada  
sd47.bc.ca • Tel 604 485 6271 • Fax 604 485 6435 
 



  

 

  

 

2023 – 2027 Strategic Plan Framework 

Territorial Acknowledgement 

We would like to acknowledge and thank the Coast Salish peoples, specifically the ɬaʔamɩn Na�on 

whose tradi�onal territory School District 47 resides on. We value the opportunity to live, learn, and 

share educa�onal experiences on this tradi�onal territory. 

 
Equity Statement 
We are committed to fostering an inclusive and equitable learning environment that celebrates diversity 
and empowers all students to thrive. We firmly believe that every individual deserves equal access to 
high-quality education, regardless of their race, ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation, socioeconomic 
status, or ability. We are dedicated to promoting a culture of belonging and understanding, where 
differences are embraced and celebrated. Our commitment to equity is ingrained in our policies, 
curriculum, and practices, ensuring representation, promoting understanding, and fostering a culture of 
belonging. By embracing diverse perspectives and advocating for social justice, we prepare our students 
to become compassionate, responsible, and engaged global citizens.  

 
Introduc�on 
 
School District 47 and its over 400 employees proudly serve approximately 3,400 students in five 
elementary schools, one remote island elementary school, one online learning school, an alternate 
school, and one secondary school.  
This strategic plan was developed in partnership with a wide variety of rights-holders, including the 
Tla’amin Na�on. These groups included parents, staff, students, and community members. 
 
In May 2023, the Board launched a public survey which received over 500 responses, indica�ng 
priori�es, visions, and ambi�ons for the future. Focus groups and mee�ngs were held with PRTDA, CUPE, 
and other key partners, at schools and local mee�ng places. 
 
All decisions made by School District 47 are guided by its vision and core values and based on research 

and consulta�on. Similarly, the district’s ini�a�ves and resources are aligned to support its commitment 

to fostering a culture of care and belonging where the well-being and success of all learners is 

supported; providing inten�onal support for a growth mindset, collabora�on, interdependence, and staff 

development; and being a forward-thinking, research-based, ethical, effec�ve, efficient, sustainable, and 

connected organiza�on.  

As a priority, this plan centres students’ needs – their learning, well-being and voices – in programming 
and supports at schools, opera�ons and management by staff as well as decisions by the Board. 
 

  



  

 

  

 

Our Principles 

Many Ways of Knowing, Learning and Being 

Diversity, Equity, and Human Dignity 

A Healthy Work and Learning Environment 

Innova�on, Curiosity and Crea�vity 

Openness, Transparency and Accountability 

 

Our Mission 

Learning and Growing, Together 

 

Our Vision 

Crea�ng Brighter Tomorrows for All 

 

Our Values  

Integrity (Honesty, Transparency, Ethics, Care, Leadership) 

 

We strive to be a living example of what we want to see in the educa�on system through con�nued 
self and organiza�onal reflec�on to ensure the confidence of those we serve. 

 

Respect (Commitment, Compassion, Humility, Dignity, Collabora�on) 

We honour others, value selflessness, and always strive to act considerately and honestly. We are 
inten�onal with our words and ac�vely listen to others. We promote collabora�on and power sharing 
to achieve posi�ve change that benefits the en�re learning community. 

 

Courage (Perseverance, Vulnerability, Risk-Taking, Strength, Accountability) 

We practice courage by moving beyond our comfort zones, embracing obstacles, and taking 
responsibility for our errors, allowing us to better ourselves and serve our learning community with 
excellence. 

 
Curiosity (Crea�vity, Wonder, Explora�on, Inquiry, Innova�on) 

We cultivate a safe environment to explore new ideas, take risks and challenge the status quo. We 
understand curiosity as critical for transformative growth, change and innovation. 
 

Inclusivity (Equity, Diversity, Fairness, Belonging, Open-mindedness) 



  

 

  

 

We promote inclusivity by changing mindsets and behaviours and cultivating welcoming and fair 
environments that actively oppose oppression. We strive to ensure everyone is seen, connected, 
supported and proud. 
 

Good Rela�ons (Interdependence, Sustainability, Trustworthiness, Reciprocity, Balance) 

We strive for balance in our relationship with ourselves, others and the lands and waters that sustain 
us. We consider the impact of our actions on past, present, and future generations and strive to leave 
a positive legacy for them. 

 
 
Our Commitment 
 
The ultimate goal of public education is for all learners to achieve their individual potential and become 
independent adults, who have lifelong appreciation for learning, a curiosity about the world around 
them, and a capacity for creative thought and expression through compassionate and empathetic 
worldviews.  
 
The Board of Education is committed to helping every learner develop as a whole person with the 
knowledge, skills, attitudes, and values needed to contribute to a healthy society and a prosperous and 
sustainable economy. In the face of an increasingly complex and rapidly changing world it is imperative 
that we do this while remaining flexible, adaptable, and focused on priorities that are important to our 
community.  
 
We also acknowledge our commitment to achieving lasting and meaningful reconciliation. This includes 
upholding our responsibility to implementing the BC Tripartite Education Agreement (BCTEA), United 
Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples, Truth and Reconciliation Commission Calls to 
Action, Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Act (Declaration Act), Tla’amin Final Agreement, 
and ɬaʔamɩn Education Agreement (TEA).  
 
The Tla’amin Final Agreement provides Tla’amin Nation with certain rights and benefits regarding land 
and resources and self-government over its lands, resources, and its members, including education. The 
ɬaʔamɩn Education Agreement (TEA) provides a contract for the best educational outcomes for Tla’amin 
students. 
 
The Board of Education has a responsibility to ensure that all students have access to a quality 
education, set education policies that reflect the aspirations of our community, provide leadership and 
encouragement to schools and the wider community, and govern the district and schools in a manner 
that creates public trust and confidence. 
 
We uphold these responsibilities by 
 

 providing governance and oversight to ensure that the education system reflects the diverse 
needs and goals of our learners and community 

 creating a strategic plan that is guided by local and provincial legislation, policy, and agreements 

 governing in a responsive manner, acting in the interests of students’ learning and well-being 



  

 

  

 

 taking a collective approach to continuous improvements that include the voices of students, 
parents and guardians, Indigenous rightsholders and Indigenous peoples, and education 
partners 

 recognizing that all education partners and Indigenous rightsholders and Indigenous peoples, 
each with unique contributions, share responsibility for student learning 

 focusing on student success and equity of learning outcomes 
 
Public education is a shared responsibility with global, provincial, and local communities. The Board of 
Education aims to ensure that big picture aspirations and goals are always translated into concrete and 
meaningful actions within our community, while honouring and upholding provincial and local 
legislation, polices, and agreements. 
 
Our Purpose 
 
Student success is at the heart of all we do. The Board of Education is committed to creating the 
conditions that will provide a high-quality education for every student to succeed in school and life. All 
talents, efforts, and resources are focused on improving student success. 
 
We do this by 
 

 aligning our education vision and activities with the principles outlined in the Policy for Student 
Success 

 anchoring our beliefs in the First Peoples Principles of Learning 

 using an equity framework to support student achievement 
 partnering with Tla’amin Nation who are guided by the principles of Tah Ow 

 
We are privileged to encompass an incredible group of students, families, caregivers, staff, and 
community members, each with their own unique stories. As a district, we are big enough to welcome a 
diverse group of learners and small enough to be creative, adaptable, and flexible to meet their varying 
needs. 
 

Our Strategic Priori�es: 

Priority 1  
  
 Cul�va�ng an Ethic of Learning (�tɩwšɛm taʔow) 
 Ensure early learners and students have the best possible learning experience. 
 

 Focus on founda�onal learning in literacy and numeracy. 

 Enhance early learning plans, opportuni�es, and partnerships.  

 Foster deep learning so all students can flourish in a rapidly changing world. 

 Increase student engagement and voice. 

 Expand school food programs to ensure all students have access to nutri�ous meals and are 
ready to learn. 

 
Priority 2  
 



  

 

  

 

Cul�va�ng Curiosity (gagayɛɬtən) 
Transform our learning environments into places of innova�on.   
 

 Con�nue to support land based and place based learning. 

 Strengthen personalized and flexible learning opportuni�es, including redesigning learning 
spaces. 

 Create a culture of inquiry and innova�on.  

 Strengthen our competencies around environmental stewardship. 
 
Priority 3  
  
 Cul�va�ng Connec�on (ʔaʔaθəm) 
 Priori�ze mental health, community connec�ons, and social-emo�onal learning.  
 

 Enhance mental health opportuni�es and partnerships that support well-being.  

 Engage, involve, and support connec�ons within the school and community. 

 Con�nue to create and promote safe, welcoming, and inclusive learning environments.  

 Promote the development of social-emo�onal learning skills. 
 
Priority 4  
  
Suppor�ng Self-Determina�on (ɬəgamɛθot) 
Ensure holis�c Indigenous student success. 
 

 Ensure consistent access to enriching, innova�ve, iden�ty affirming, and culturally relevant 
opportuni�es and supports. 

 Ensure educa�onal spaces are culturally safe by commi�ng to system wide respect of this place 
and our shared history by priori�zing Indigenous languages, perspec�ves, values and cultures. 

  Support students with se�ng goals for the future (ʔimot θ ��wšɛm, toχnɛgosəmčxʷʊm θoθo) 
  
Priority 5  
  
 Cul�va�ng Truth and Reconcilia�on (�yhɛgən mɛtəm) 
 Honour Truth and reconcilia�on.  
  

 Work to undo the legacies of colonialism through diverse pathways including suppor�ng 
ʔayʔaǰuθəm language revitaliza�on ini�a�ves and educa�on. 

 Con�nue our commitment to the Truth and Reconcilia�on Commissions Calls to Ac�on and the 
United Na�on’s Declara�on on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples. 

 
Priority 6 
 
Cul�va�ng Integrity/Responsibility (�yhɛgən mɛtəm) 

Priori�ze climate change, organiza�onal health and sustainability. 

 Provide climate ac�on educa�on and leadership opportuni�es grounded in Indigenous ways of 
knowing. 

 Align planning, processes, policies, and procedures to improve the effec�veness of the system.  



  

 

  

 

Next Steps 

The Board is commi�ed to ensuring this plan becomes a guide for our district. As with any strategic plan, 
the words on the page are not as important as the hearts and spirits of those who contributed to the 
plan and those bringing the plan to life.  While the Strategic Plan sets out the ‘why’ and ‘for whom’, the 
subsequent Opera�onal Plan, as well as School Growth Plans, indicate the ‘how’, ‘when’, and ‘what’. We 
will develop and implement opera�onal plans over the strategic plan’s 4-year period to guide priority 
se�ng and lay out a clear ac�on plan to achieve the strategic goals. 
 

Measuring Success 

Our work to deliver on our commitments within the strategic plan includes evalua�ng the progress and 

success of the six priori�es.  SD47 plans to report on these priori�es through annual reports and 

community updates. A combina�on of quan�ta�ve and qualita�ve measures will be captured as 

evidence of success and progress, as well as where we may need to refocus our efforts to ensure we 

con�nue to improve student success. This ongoing evalua�on will support further strategic planning and 

will help inform the opera�onal plan. 

Conclusion 

This strategic plan is a commitment to the priori�es of the Board of Educa�on over the next four years. 

The board would like to acknowledge the considerable amount of planning, �me and effort that went 

into the development of their new strategic plan. The hard work and dedica�on of staff, students, rights 

holders, parents, guardians, and the broader community made this a truly collabora�ve process. We are 

confident that together we can make a difference in improving outcomes for children and youth in our 

District. 

 

Emote. 

Thank you. 

 



 School District 47 

Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis 

2022/2023 

 

 

Introduction 

The following Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with the 

audited financial statements and accompanying notes for School District No. 47 for the year ended June 

30, 2023. The purpose of the Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis is to highlight information and 

provide explanations, which enhance the reader’s understanding of the school district’s financial 

statements as well as the factors that influenced the financial results presented in these statements. The 

preparation of the Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis is the responsibility of the management 

of the school district. 

 

Overview of School District 47 

School District No. 47 is situated in a beautiful coastal community on the Upper Sunshine Coast in the 
qathet Regional District and on the traditional territory of the Tla'amin Nation. Just over 130 km from 
Vancouver, BC, Powell River is surrounded by forest, mountains, and many freshwater bodies of water 
and is part of the coastal mountain range. With the Pacific Ocean to its west, the region enjoys a 
temperate climate. The qathet Regional District currently has a population of 20,070 (Statistics Canada: 
2016 Census).  
  
The District serves approximately 3,200 students in four K-7 elementary schools, one dual track K-7 
elementary school, one remote island K-7 elementary school, a K-12 online learning school, an alternate 
school, and one 8-12 secondary school.   
 
A number of additional program opportunities are provided including Before and After School Care, 

Early Learning and Strong Start Programs, French Immersion, ʔaǰuθəm Language, Dual Credit Academics 

and Trades, an International Student Program as well oversees an Auditory Outreach Program on behalf 

of the Province. 

All decisions made by School District 47 are guided by its vision and core values and based on research 

and consultation. Similarly, the district’s initiatives and resources are aligned to support its commitment 

to fostering a culture of care and belonging where the well-being and success of all learners is 

supported; providing intentional support for a growth mindset, collaboration, interdependence, and 

staff development; and being a forward-thinking, research-based, ethical, effective, efficient, 

sustainable, and connected organization. 

  



Our Vision 

To enable all learners to develop their individual potential and to acquire the knowledge, skills and 
attitudes needed to contribute to a healthy, democratic, and pluralistic society. 
 
 

Our Mission 

To prepare students, within a safe, inclusive, and dynamic environment to face a changing world as 
lifelong learners and informed, responsible citizens. 
 

Our Values 

 

 

Strategic Priorities and Goals 

The strategic priorities and goals for the Powell River School District are established on a rolling four-

year planning cycle, with this being the final year, and are summarized in departmental operational 

plans and school growth plans. The board-approved plan supports the specific strategic goals identified 

in operational plans and school growth plans.  

For 2022/2023 specifically, the Board supported the allocation of resources in support of: 

Literacy and Numeracy    Counselling and Mental Health 

Food & Family Supports    Indigenous History, Culture and Language 

Libraries     Applied Design, Skills and Technologies 

Technology     Before & After School Care 



Enrolment 

The Powell River School District is funded primarily through an operating grant received from the 

Ministry of Education. The operating grant is based on student enrolment which is compiled through a 

data collection process in September, February, May and July. The District receives a fixed amount per 

full-time equivalent student (FTE). The School District also receives supplementary grants for students 

who are identified as having unique needs and for other demographic and unique geographical factors. 

District staffing levels are driven directly by student enrolment. Since salaries and benefits make up 

almost 75 percent of District expenses, reliable enrolment data is essential for financial planning.  

 

Number of Students Across All Grades 

 

Student Enrolment Over Time 

 

 



Understanding School District 47 Financial Statements 

The District uses fund accounting and deferral accounting and each of its funds has certain restrictions in 

accounting for funds received and expended. These methods are primarily used in the public sector 

where the goal is to avoid budget deficits while providing the greatest benefit to the public by 

strategically allocating the resources that are available. In this respect, school districts are expected to 

ensure that available funds are being used in the most efficient way possible to maximize the potential 

benefit of each dollar and in the specific manner for which they were intended. 

The District’s financial statements include the following audited statements:  

• Statement of Financial Position (Statement 1)  

• Statement of Operations (Statement 2)  

• Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt) (Statement 4)  

• Statement of Cash Flows (Statement 5) 

The notes to the financial statements provide information regarding the District’s accounting policies 

and details what is included in the account balances in the financial statements. Following the notes to 

the financial statements are supplementary unaudited schedules that provide information about the 

individual funds. 

Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) (Schedule 1)  

Summarizes the surplus (deficit for the year and accumulated surplus amounts for each of the three 

funds (Operating, Special Purpose, and Capital Funds). 

Operating Fund (Schedule 2) 

The operating fund includes operating grants and other revenue used to fund instructional programs, 

school and district administration, facilities operations, custodial services, maintenance, and 

transportation.  

Special Purpose Fund (Schedule 3) 

 The special purpose fund is comprised of separate funds established to track revenue and expenditures 

received from the Ministry of Education and other sources that have restrictions on how they may be 

spent (e.g. Classroom Enhancement Fund, Annual Facilities Grant, Community LINK, Ready Set Learn and 

School Generated Funds).  

Capital Fund (schedule 4) 

 The capital fund includes capital expenditures related to facilities and equipment that are funded by 

Ministry of Education capital grants, operating funds, and special purpose funds. An annual deficit in the 

capital fund that is a result of amortization expense and budgeted capital assets purchased from 

operating and special purpose funds exceeding the amortization of deferred capital revenue plus 

budgeted local capital revenue is permitted under the Accounting Practices Order of the Ministry of 

Education.  

 



Financial Highlights 

93% of the School District’s operating revenue comes from the Ministry of Education. The amount of 

funding is determined through an allocation formula that considers student enrollment and various 

other supplements including recognition of the unique geographic needs of our region. The balance of 

operating revenue consists of International Student fees, funding through our Tla’amin Education 

agreement, a funding agreement with School District 93, support from the Industry Training Authority as 

well as some building leases, investment income and other miscellaneous revenues. 

Salary and benefit costs continue to account for almost three quarters of the organizations operating 

costs with the remainder spent on various services, supplies and utilities.  

Below is a summary list of considerations that influenced the organizations financial outlook for the 

school year including significant planned and unplanned expenditures of note.  

 

Summary of Significant Events  

Enrolment and Revenue 

• Total annualized enrolment of approximately 3,200 students includes enrolment of over 35% in 

a blended online learning program. 

• 25% of the operating grant from the Ministry of Education and Childcare was derived from the 

supplement for Unique Student Needs. 

Service Delivery and Spending 

• Before and After School Programming continued at elementary schools. 

• Significant resources added to ensure a robust offering of healthy food choices for students in 

need. 

• Education coordinator positions added the previous year were extended. 

• A second Family Liaison position was added to assist with existing caseloads. 

• Engaged a consultant to assist with the development of the Boards next strategic plan. 

Capital Works and Equipment Replacement 

• Significant resources allocated for the renewal of equipment in the commercial kitchen at 

Brooks Secondary School.  

• Multiple service vehicles were acquired for the ongoing renewal of the existing fleet.  

• Replaced roofing systems at Henderson and James Thomson Elementary. 

• A solar system was added to each of Westview and Henderson Elementary Schools.  

• LED lighting upgrade completed on Texada.  

• Second and final phase of the playfield improvement project at Brooks secondary were 

completed.  

• Work continued at each of the Edgehill and Kelly Creek school sites in support of future 

daycares.  

 



Financial Analysis of the School District 

Statement of Financial Position  

 2023  2022 Variance $ Variance % 

Financial Assets     

Cash and Cash Equivalents  7,715,098 9,247,733 (1,532,635) (17) % 

Accounts Receivable - MOECC 129,182 50,000 79,182 158 % 

Accounts Receivable - Other 347,045 200,505 146,540 73 % 

Total Financial Assets  8,191,325 9,498,238 (1,306,913) (14) % 

     

Liabilities      

Accounts Payable 3,361,089 2,468,363 892,726 36 % 

Unearned Revenue 371,494 472,429 (100,935) (21 %) 

Deferred Revenue 602,775 832,548 (229,773) (28) % 

Deferred Capital Revenue 37,962,163 38,025,548 (63,385) (0) % 

Employee Future Benefits 791,702 817,819 (26,117) 4 % 

Asset Retirement Obligation 1,382,777 1,394,540 (11,763) (3) % 

Total Liabilities 44,472,000 44,011,403 460,597 1 % 

     

Net Debt (36,280,675) (34,513,165) (1,767,510) .5 % 

     

Non-Financial Assets     

Tangible Capital Assets 47,116,095 46,874,255 241,840 0 % 

Prepaid Expenses 117,626 113,505 4,121 3 % 

Total Non-Financial Assets 47,233,721 46,987,760 245,961 0 % 

     

Accumulated Surplus $ 10,953,046 $ 12,474,595 $ (1,521,549) (12) % 

 

• Decreased cash balances attributed mostly to increased spending resulting in a decreased 

accumulated surplus. 

 

Income Statement 

Revenues 

The tables below summarize actual operating revenues and expenditures as compared to budgeted: 

 Actual   Budgeted  Variance 

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education $ 35,259,964 $ 34,700,731 $ 559,233 

Other MOE Grants 2,005,273 1,373,817 631,456 

Provincial Grants - Other 115,554 100,000 15,554 

Tuition 887,702 874,182 13,520 

Other Education Authorities 120,009 120,009 - 

First Nations (LEA) 1,032,389 974,724 57,665 



Miscellaneous Revenues 356,691 117,706 238,985 

Rentals 176,367 125,900 50,467 

Interest 207,361 100,000 107,361 

Total Operating Revenue $ 40,161,310 $ 38,487,069 $ 1,674,241 

 

• Higher than forecasted Online Learning students captured in the February and May enrolment 

counts account for the variance in budgeted to actual operating grants. 

• Labour settlement grants account for the variance in Other Ministry grants as the full grant was 

not announced until after the amended budget was adopted.  

 

Expenses 

 Actual   Budgeted  Variance 

Salaries    

Teachers $ 13,464,576 $ 13,614,483 $ 149,907  

Principals & Vice-Principals  2,607,118 2,384,399 (222,719) 

Education Assistants 2,537,629 2,712,723 175,094 

Support Staff 3,181,765 2,911,252 (270,513) 

Other Professionals 1,552,055 2,084,800 532,745 

Substitutes  1,656,046 1,486,705 (169,341) 

Total Salaries 24,999,189 25,194,362 195,173 

Employees Benefits 5,762,871 5,653,627 (109,244 

Total Salary and Benefits 30,762,060 30,847,989 85,929 

Services and Supplies 9,977,821 7,914,423 (2,063,398) 

Utilities 672,141 704,500 32,359 

Total Services and Supplies 10,649,962 8,618,923 (2,031,039) 

    

Total Operating Expense $ 41,412,962  $ 39,466,912  $ (1,946,050)  

 

Operating Deficit for the year $ (1,250,712) $ (979,843) $ (270,869) 

 

• Several administrative positions were incorrectly captured in the amended budget as Other 

Professional Salaries when they should have been categorized as Principal salaries which 

accounts for much of the variance in those two categories with unfilled positions accounting for 

most of the remaining balance.  

• Resources added to both the maintenance and transportation departments resulting in higher 

than budgeted salary costs for support staff.  

• Much of the variance in the service and supply accounts can be attributed to higher than 

forecasted spending in support of students with unique needs enrolled in the online program 

combined with the undertaking of additional maintenance related projects late in the school 

year.  



Special Purpose Fund Contribution Summary 

The special purpose fund is comprised of separate funds established to track revenue and expenditures 

received from the Ministry of Education and other sources that have restrictions on how the funds are 

spent. The following special purpose funds have been included in the 2022/23 audited statements: 

 

Annual Facility Grant (AFG) $122,953 These funds are used throughout 
District schools to address ongoing 
maintenance and improvement needs. 

Learning Improvement Fund (LIF) $122,425 Funding used specifically to augment 
Educational Assistants’ hours providing 
additional support to complex 
learners. 

School Generated Funds & Bursaries $2,174,977 
 
$541,431 
Deferred 

Funds that are generated locally at the 
school level and used for school 
operations and in support of students. 

Strong Start $139,376 
 
 

Strong Start early learning centres 
provide school-based, drop-in 
programs for children aged birth to 
five and their parents or caregivers. 

Ready, Set, Learn $14,700 Eligible RSL events for 3-to-5-year old 
children and their parents are hosted 
to support early learning. 

Official Languages in Education French 
Programs (OLEP) 

$215,255 
 
$798 Deferred 

Funding for core French-language and 
Immersion programs and curriculum 
resources. 

Community Link $217,972 
 
$7,735 
Deferred 

Funding for programs and initiatives to 
improve the education performance of 
vulnerable students, including both 
academic achievement and social 
functioning. 

Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF) $2,362,431 Eligible expenses include teacher 
staffing, overhead staffing and 
equipment costs resulting from 
restoration of class size and 
composition language. 

Ventilation Fund $50,000 
 

To improve ventilation in schools. 

Mental Health in Schools $55,000 To support increased awareness of 
issues related to mental health. 

Changing Results for Young Readers $6,000 Literacy initiative.  

Early Learning Related Funds $274,400 Includes Seamless, Day, Just B4 & 
Others 



Student & Family Affordability Fund $290,757 
 
$52,811 
Deferred 

One time funding in support of making 
life more affordable for families during 
this time of increased inflation.  

Auditory Outreach Program $1,579,203 
 
 

Auditory Outreach Program assists 
schools throughout the province 
through loans of assistive listening 
devices for individual students with 
hearing loss identified as needing this 
technology for school use. 

 

Capital Funds 

The Strategic Facilities Plan adopted by the Board in January 2021 identifies long term capital needs and 

acts as a guide when making applications to government in support of capital planning.  

The District is required to submit a five-year capital plan to the Ministry of Education for additional 

funding for capital projects as described below.  

Annual Facilities Grant (AFG) funds are used throughout District schools to address ongoing 

maintenance and improvement needs.  

School Enhancement Program (SEP) projects are investments that contribute to the safety and function 

of the school while extending the life of the asset.  

Carbon Neutral Capital Program (CNCP) projects are investments that contribute to measurable 

emission reductions and operational costs savings expected as a result of completed projects. 

Playground Equipment Program (PEP) projects are investments in new or replacement equipment that 

is universal in design. 

Local Capital is a fund consisting of resources set aside by the Board targeted in support of capital needs 

not otherwise funded by the province. Examples of such investments include portable classrooms and 

equipment such as maintenance vehicles. 

New Spaces Fund is available by application to support the creation of childcare spaces.  

 2022/2023 Capital Spending 

AFG (Capital Portion) $ 507,508 

SEP $ 794,182 

CNCP $ 390,000 

PEP - 

Local Capital  $487,635  

New Spaces Fund $157,547 

 

• The section titled Summary of Significant Events includes information describing some of the 

projects undertaken as part of the capital plan. 



Future Considerations – Risks and Opportunities 

Powell River schools are near, and in some instances, at capacity. With the active real estate market 

over the last few years there has been a slow but incremental increase in the local student population. 

The district may have to consider strategies such as changes to the current grade configuration or 

additional investments into portable classrooms in the not-too-distant future.  

School Districts across the Province are continuing to face significant challenges in the recruitment and 

retention of qualified staff and School District 47 has been no different with several strategic positions 

taking longer than anticipated to fill.  

School District 47 was recently confirmed to be one of the select few Provincial Service Providers for 

Online Learning, this opportunity will keep the school District in growth mode for the foreseeable 

future.  

 

Contacting Management 

This financial report is designed to provide the School District’s stakeholders with a more general but 

more detailed overview off the school district’s finances and to demonstrate increased accountability 

for the public funds received by the school district. If you have questions about this financial report, 

please contact the Office of the Secretary-Treasurer at (604) 414 2604. 
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School District No. 47 (Powell River)

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

On behalf of School District No. 47 (Powell River)

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

DRAFT

The external auditors, MNP , conduct an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally 

accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements.  The external auditors have 

full and free access to financial management of School District No. 47 (Powell River) and meet when required.  

The accompanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination 

and their opinion on the School District's financial statements.

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

The accompanying financial statements of School District No. 47 (Powell River) have been prepared by 

management in accordance with the accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and 

Accountability Act of British Columbia, supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the 

Province of British Columbia Treasury Board, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are 

management's responsibility.  Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and 

schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information 

contained in the financial statements.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide 

reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and reliable financial 

information is produced.

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's 

judgment particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with 

certainty until future periods.

The Board of Education of School District No. 47 (Powell River) (called the ''Board'') is responsible for 

ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and exercises 

these responsibilities through the Board.  The Board reviews internal financial statements on a monthly basis 

and externally audited financial statements yearly.
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Statement 1

2023 2022

Actual Actual

(Restated - Note 20)

$ $

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,715,098            9,247,733            

Accounts Receivable

Due from Province - Ministry of Education and Child Care 129,182               50,000                 

Other (Note 3) 347,045               200,505               

Total Financial Assets 8,191,325            9,498,238            

Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Other (Note 4) 3,361,089            2,468,354            

Unearned Revenue (Note 9) 371,494               472,429               

Deferred Revenue (Note 6) 602,775               832,713               

Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 7) 37,962,163          38,025,548          

Employee Future Benefits (Note 8) 791,702               817,819               

Asset Retirement Obligation (Note 16 & 20) 1,382,777            1,394,540            

Total Liabilities 44,472,000          44,011,403          

Net Debt (36,280,675)        (34,513,165)        

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible Capital Assets (Note 10) 47,116,095          46,874,255          

Prepaid Expenses 117,626               113,505               

Total Non-Financial Assets 47,233,721          46,987,760          

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) (Note 18) 10,953,046          12,474,595          

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) is comprised of:

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations 10,953,046          12,474,595          

Accumulated Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

10,953,046          12,474,595          

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2023

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

Approved by the Board

Contingent Liabilities (Note 11)

DRAFT

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement 2

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 20)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 41,372,480          42,715,709          38,390,011          

Other 100,000               115,554               145,872               

Tuition 874,182               887,702               1,192,761            

Other Revenue 2,087,439            3,684,066            2,438,827            

Rentals and Leases 125,900               176,367               143,648               

Investment Income 107,500               276,481               53,391                

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,663,578            1,755,075            1,712,193            

Total Revenue 46,331,079          49,610,954          44,076,703          

Expenses

Instruction 38,369,569          40,736,499          34,346,233          

District Administration 1,999,981            1,954,617            1,647,672            

Operations and Maintenance 5,996,168            7,029,617            6,248,869            

Transportation and Housing 1,203,775            1,411,770            1,188,111            

Total Expense 47,569,493          51,132,503          43,430,885          

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1,238,414)          (1,521,549)          645,818               

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, beginning of year 12,474,595          11,828,777          

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, end of year 10,953,046          12,474,595          

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
DRAFT - Not Finalized
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Statement 4

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 20)

$ $ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1,238,414)          (1,521,549)          645,818               

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (2,336,872)          (2,864,734)          

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,929,649            2,095,032            2,025,492            

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets 1,929,649            (241,840)             (839,242)             

Acquisition of Prepaid Expenses (4,121)                 (23,216)               

Total Effect of change in Other Non-Financial Assets -                          (4,121)                 (23,216)               

(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt, before Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) 691,235               (1,767,510)          (216,640)             

Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt (1,767,510)          (216,640)             

Net Debt, beginning of year (34,513,165)        (34,296,525)        

Net Debt, end of year (36,280,675)        (34,513,165)        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Changes in Net Debt

Year Ended June 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
DRAFT - Not Finalized
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Statement 5

2023 2022

Actual Actual

(Restated - Note 20)

$ $

Operating Transactions

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1,521,549)         645,818             

Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital

Decrease (Increase)

Accounts Receivable (225,722)            78,146               

Prepaid Expenses (4,121)                (23,216)              

Increase (Decrease)

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 892,735             271,623             

Unearned Revenue (100,935)            (43,089)              

Deferred Revenue (229,938)            264,513             

Employee Future Benefits (26,117)              29,700               

Other Liabilities (11,763)              

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 2,095,032          2,025,492          

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue (1,755,075)         (1,712,193)         

Total Operating Transactions (887,453)            1,536,794          

Capital Transactions

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (2,336,872)         (2,864,734)         

Total Capital Transactions (2,336,872)         (2,864,734)         

Financing Transactions

Capital Revenue Received 1,691,690          3,157,274          

Total Financing Transactions 1,691,690          3,157,274          

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,532,635)         1,829,334          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 9,247,733          7,418,399          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 7,715,098          9,247,733          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year, is made up of:

Cash 7,715,098          9,247,733          

7,715,098          9,247,733          

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 
   

 
The School District, operates under authority of the School Act of British Columbia as a corporation 
under the name of "The Board of Education of School District No. 47 (Powell River)", and operates 
as "School District No. 47 (Powell River)."  A board of education (“Board”) elected for a four-year 
term governs the School District.  The School District provides educational programs to students 
enrolled in schools in the district, and is principally funded by the Province of British Columbia 
through the Ministry of Education and Child Care. School District No. 47 (Powell River) is exempt 
from federal and provincial corporate income taxes. 
 
The COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization in March 
2020 and has had a significant financial, market and social dislocating impact worldwide.    The 
ongoing impact of the pandemic presents uncertainty over future cash flows, may have a significant 
impact on future operations including decreases in revenue, impairment of receivables, reduction in 
investment income and delays in completing capital project work.  As the situation is dynamic and 
the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact are not known, an estimate of the future financial 
effect on the District is not practicable at this time. 
 
 
NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
a) Basis of Accounting  

 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget 
Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia. This Section requires 
that the financial statements be prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards except in regard to the accounting for government transfers as set out in Notes 2(e) 
and 2(l).  
 
In November 2011, Treasury Board provided a directive through Restricted Contributions 
Regulation 198/2011 providing direction for the reporting of restricted contributions whether 
they are received or receivable by the School District before or after this regulation was in 
effect.  
 
As noted in notes 2(e) and 2(l), Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act 
and its related regulations require the School District to recognize government transfers for the 
acquisition of capital assets into revenue on the same basis as the related amortization expense. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

a) Basis of Accounting (cont’d) 
 

As these transfers do not contain stipulations that create a liability, Canadian public sector 
accounting standards would require that: 
 

 government transfers, which do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability, be 
recognized as revenue by the recipient when approved by the transferor and the 
eligibility criteria have been met in accordance with public sector accounting standard 
PS3410; and 

 
 externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which the 

resources are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with public sector 
accounting standard PS3100. 

 
The impact of this difference on the financial statements of the School District is as follows: 
 
Year-ended June 30, 2022 – increase in annual surplus by $1,445,081 
June 30, 2022 – increase in accumulated surplus and increase in deferred contributions by 
$38,025,548 
Year-ended June 30, 2023 – decrease in annual surplus by $63,385 
June 30, 2023 – increase in accumulated surplus and increase in deferred contributions by 
$37,962,163 

 
b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid securities that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.  These 
cash equivalents generally have a maturity of three months or less at acquisition and are held for 
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investing. 
 

c) Accounts Receivable 
 
 Accounts receivables are measured at amortized cost and shown net of allowance for doubtful 

accounts. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
d) Unearned Revenue 

 
Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods and 
receipt of proceeds for services or products to be delivered in a future period. Revenue will be 
recognized in that future period when the courses, services, or products are provided. 

 
e) Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue 

 
Deferred revenue includes contributions received with stipulations that meet the description of 
restricted contributions in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury 
Board. When restrictions are met, deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in 
a manner consistent with the circumstances and evidence used to support the initial recognition 
of the contributions received as a liability as detailed in Note 2 (l). 

 
Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as deferred 
capital revenue and amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the statement of 
operations.  This accounting treatment is not consistent with the requirements of Canadian 
public sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be recognized as 
revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met unless the 
transfer contains a stipulation that creates a liability in which case the transfer is recognized as 
revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished.  See note 2 (a) for the impact of this 
policy on these financial statements. 
 

f) Prepaid Expenses 
 
Insurance premiums, and software licensing and support, are included as a prepaid expense and 
stated at acquisition cost and are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit from it.  

 
g) Funds and Reserves 

 
Certain amounts, as approved by the Board are set aside in accumulated surplus for future 
operating and capital purposes. Transfers to and from funds and reserves are an adjustment to 
the respective fund when approved (see Notes 13 – Interfund Transfers and Note 18 – 
Accumulated Surplus).  
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
h) Employee Future Benefits 
 

The School District provides certain post-employment benefits including vested and non-vested 
benefits for certain employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements. The School 
District accrues its obligations and related costs including both vested and non-vested benefits 
under employee future benefit plans. Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-
vested sick leave, early retirement, retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits. 
The benefits cost is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method pro-rated on 
service and using management’s best estimate of expected salary escalation, termination rates, 
retirement rates and mortality. The discount rate used to measure obligations is based on the cost 
of borrowing. The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the 
expected average remaining service lifetime of active employees covered under the plan.   
 
The most recent valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2022 and projected  
to March 31, 2025. The next valuation will be performed at March 31, 2025 for use at  
June 30, 2025. For the purposes of determining the financial position of the plans and the 
employee future benefit costs, a measurement date of March 31 was adopted for all periods 
subsequent to July 1, 2004. 
 
The School district and its employees make contributions to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and 
Municipal Pension Plan.  The plans are multi-employer plans where assets and obligations are 
not separated. The costs are expensed as incurred. 

 
 

i) Liability for Contaminated Sites  
 
Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or 
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an 
environmental standard.  The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability for 
remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use and all the 
following criteria are met: 
 

 an environmental standard exists; 
 contamination exceeds the environmental standard; 
 the School District: 

o is directly responsible; or 
o accepts responsibility;  

 it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 
 a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

i) Liability for Contaminated Sites (cont’d) 
 
The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including operation, 
maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy for a contaminated site. 
 

j) Measurement Uncertainty 
 

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting described in note 
2 a) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that impact reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the 
reporting periods. Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the 
potential impairment of assets, liabilities for contaminated sites, asset retirement obligations, 
rates for amortization and estimated employee future benefits.  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.  
 

k) Tangible Capital Assets 
 
The following criteria apply: 

 Tangible capital assets acquired or constructed are recorded at cost which includes 
amounts that are directly related to the acquisition, design, construction, development, 
improvement or betterment of the assets. Cost also includes overhead directly 
attributable to construction as well as interest costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or construction of the asset. 

 Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date of 
donation, except in circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined, 
which are then recognized at nominal value. Transfers of capital assets from related 
parties are recorded at carrying value.  

 Work-in-progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable asset class at substantial 
completion. 

 Tangible capital assets are written down to residual value when conditions indicate they 
no longer contribute to the ability of the School District to provide services or when the 
value of future economic benefits associated with the sites and buildings are less than 
their net book value. The write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the Statement of 
Operations. 

 Buildings that are demolished or destroyed are written-off. 
 Works of art, historic assets and other intangible assets are not recorded as assets in these 

financial statements. 
 The cost, less residual value, of tangible capital assets (excluding sites), is amortized on a 

straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. It is management’s 
responsibility to determine the appropriate useful lives for tangible capital assets. These 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

k) Tangible Capital Assets (cont’d) 
 
useful lives are reviewed on a regular basis or if significant events initiate the need to 
revise. Estimated useful life is as follows: 
 

Buildings 40 years 
Furniture & Equipment 10 years 
Vehicles 10 years 
Computer Software 5 years 
Computer Hardware 5 years 

 
l) Revenue Recognition 

 

Revenues are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transactions or events 
occurred that gave rise to the revenues, the amounts are considered to be collectible and can be 
reasonably estimated. 

 
Contributions received or where eligibility criteria have been met are recognized as revenue 
except where the contribution meets the criteria for deferral as described below. Eligibility 
criteria are the criteria that the School District has to meet in order to receive the contributions 
including authorization by the transferring government. 
 
For contributions subject to a legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to their use, 
revenue is recognized as follows: 
 

 Non-capital contributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and 
recognized as revenue in the year related expenses are incurred, 

 Contributions restricted for site acquisitions are recorded as revenue when the sites are 
purchased, and 

 Contributions restricted for tangible capital assets acquisitions other than sites are 
recorded as deferred capital revenue and amortized over the useful life of the related 
assets.  

 
Donated tangible capital assets other than sites are recorded at fair market value and amortized 
over the useful life of the assets. Donated sites are recorded as revenue at fair market value when 
received or receivable. 

 
The accounting treatment for restricted contributions is not consistent with the requirements of 
Canadian public sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be 
recognized as revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met.  
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

l) Revenue Recognition (cont’d) 
 
unless the transfer contains a stipulation that meets the criteria for liability recognition in which 
case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished.  See 
note 2(a) for the impact of this policy on these financial statements. 
 
Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service is 
performed is deferred and recognized when the fee is earned or service performed. 
 
Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding party or 
related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the deferred revenue 
balance. 
 

m) Expenses 
 
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed, and services 
received during the year is expensed. 

 
 Categories of Salaries 

 Principals, Vice-Principals, and Directors of Instruction employed under an 
administrative officer contract are categorized as Principals and Vice-Principals. 

 Superintendents, Assistant Superintendents, Secretary-Treasurers, Trustees and other 
employees excluded from union contracts are categorized as Other Professionals. 

 
Allocation of Costs  

 Operating expenses are reported by function, program, and object. Whenever possible, 
expenditures are determined by actual identification. Additional costs pertaining to 
specific instructional programs, such as special and aboriginal education, are allocated to 
these programs. All other costs are allocated to related programs. 

 Actual salaries of personnel assigned to two or more functions or programs are allocated 
based on the time spent in each function and program.  School-based clerical salaries are 
allocated to school administration and partially to other programs to which they may be 
assigned. Principals and Vice-Principals salaries are allocated to school administration 
and may be partially allocated to other programs to recognize their other responsibilities. 

 Employee benefits and allowances are allocated to the same programs, and in the same 
proportions, as the individual’s salary. 

 Supplies and services are allocated based on actual program identification. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
n) Financial Instruments  

 
A contract establishing a financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights and obligations to 
receive or deliver economic benefits. The financial assets and financial liabilities portray these 
rights and obligations in the financial statements. The School District recognizes a financial 
instrument when it becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.  
 
Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities, and other liabilities. 
 
All financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or amortized cost and the associated 
transaction costs are added to the carrying value of these investments upon initial recognition 

and amortized using the effective interest rate method. Transaction costs are incremental costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or a financial liability.  

 
Unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments are 
recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. Upon settlement, the cumulative 
gain or loss is reclassified from the statement of remeasurement gains and losses and recognized 
in the statement of operations. Interest and dividends attributable to financial instruments are 
reported in the statement of operations. There are no measurement gains or losses during the 
periods presented; therefore, no statement of remeasurement gains or losses is included in these 
financial statements. 
 
All financial assets except derivatives are tested annually for impairment. When financial assets 
are impaired, impairment losses are recorded in the statement of operations. A write-down of a 
portfolio investment to reflect a loss in value is not reversed for a subsequent increase in value.  
  
For financial instruments measured using amortized cost, the effective interest rate method is 
used to determine interest revenue or expense.  
 

 
o) Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses 

 
A statement of re-measurement gains and losses has not been presented as the District does not 
hold any financial assets or liabilities that would give rise to remeasurement gains or losses. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
p) Asset Retirement Obligations 

 

A liability is recognized when, as at the financial reporting date: 

(a)     there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset; 

(b)     the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred; 

(c)     it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 

(d)     a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 
  

The liability for the removal of asbestos and other hazardous material in several of the buildings 
owned by the School District has been initially recognized using the modified retroactive 
method. The liability has been measured at current cost as the timing and amounts of future cash 
flows cannot be estimated. The resulting costs have been capitalized into the carrying amount of 
tangible capita assets and are being amortized on the same basis as the related tangible capital 
asset (see note 2k). Assumptions used in the calculations are reviewed annually.  

 

q) Future Changes in Accounting Policies 

PS 3400 Revenue issued November 2018 establishes standards on how to account for and report 
on revenue and is effective July 1, 2023. Specifically, it differentiates between revenue arising 
from transactions that include performance obligations, referred to as "exchange transactions", 
and transactions that do not have performance obligations, referred to as "non-exchange 
transactions". 

Revenue from transactions with performance obligations should be recognized when (or as) 
the school district satisfies a performance obligation by providing the promised goods or services 
to a payor. 

Revenue from transactions with no performance obligations should be recognized when a school 
district: 

 (a)     has the authority to claim or retain an inflow of economic resources; and 
 (b)     identifies a past transaction or event that gives rise to an asset. 

 

This standard may be applied retroactively or prospectively.  Management is in the process of 
assessing the impact of adopting this standard on the School District’s financial results 

 
 
 
 



  
 
 
 

POWELL RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION  
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47  

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 

 

 

 Page 17 of 29 June 2023 

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER 
 
 2023 2022 

   
Due from Federal Government        $132,637 

 
$101,031 

 
Due from Others 214,408 99,474 

   
 $347,045 $200,505 

 
 
 
NOTE 4 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES – OTHER 
 
 2023 2022 
   
Trade and other payables  $1,395,672 $977,179 
Salaries and benefits payable 169,970 100,346 
Deductions Payable 1,795,447 1,390,829 
   
 $3,361,089 $2,468,354 

 
 
 
NOTE 5 EXPENSE BY OBJECT 
  2023 

 

 2022 
 

Salaries  $28,196,070 $24,579,935 
Benefits 6,498,856 5,374,500 
Services and supplies 14,342,545 11,450,958 
Amortization 2,095,032 2,025,492 
 $51,132,503 $43,430,885 
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NOTE 6 DEFERRED REVENUE 
 
Deferred revenue includes unspent grants and contributions received that meet the description of a 
restricted contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury 
Board, i.e., the stipulations associated with those grants and contributions have not yet been 
fulfilled. Detailed information about the changes in deferred revenue are as follows:  

 
 

2023  
 

2022 
    
Balance, beginning of year $   832,713   $   568,191 

Increases: 
   Provincial Grant – MOE 

                   
$5,223,056   

                   
$4,601,476  

    
Other 2,172,455  1,122,015 
                          

 7,395,511    5,723,491  
Decreases:    

       Transfers to Revenue 7,625,449   5,458,969  
    

Net Changes for the year (229,938)   264,522 
    
Balance, end of the year $602,775    $832,713  
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NOTE 7  DEFERRED CAPITAL REVENUE 
 
Deferred capital revenue includes grants and contributions received that are restricted by the 
contributor for the acquisition of tangible capital assets that meet the description of a restricted 
contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. Once 
spent, the contributions are amortized into revenue over the life of the asset acquired. Detailed 
information about the changes in deferred capital revenue is as follows: 
  
         

 

           
Deferred Cap 

Revenue 

   Unspent 
Def. Cap 
Revenue 

Total        
2023  2022 

Balance, beginning of year  $37,137,548 $ 888,000 $ 38,025,548  36,580,467 
 

Increases: 
  

   

Transfers from DC - capital additions         1,849,237  1,849,237  2,269,274 
      

      
Provincial Grants – MECC 
Provincial Grants - Other 
Other  

1,691,690 
 
 

     1,691,690 
 
  

2,000,124 
888,000 
269,150 

 
  

1,849,237 
   

1,691,690 3,540,927  5,426,548 
Decreases:      

Amortization         1,755,075  1,755,075  1,712,193 
Transfers to DCR - Capital Additions       1,849,237   1,849,237  2,269,274 

      

 Net Changes 
       

94,162 
 

 (157,547)    (63,385)    1,445,081 
      

 
Balance, end of the year 
 

   
 

$37,231,710 
 

                                           
 

$ 730,453 
 

$ 37,962,163 
  

$ 38,025,548 
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NOTE 8  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
 
Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement, 
retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits. Funding is provided when the benefits 
are paid and accordingly, there are no plan assets.  Although no plan assets are uniquely identified, 
the School District has provided for the payment of these benefits.  
 
 

 2023 2022 
Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation 

Accrued Benefit Obligation – April 1    $803,840 $846,802 
Service Cost 73,740 69,769 
Interest Cost 27,138 22,099 
Benefit Payments (157,957) (79,325) 
Increase (Decrease) in obligation due to Plan Amendment - - 
Actuarial Loss  63,552 (55,505) 
Accrued Benefit Obligation – March 31 $810,313 $803,840 

 
Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Fiscal Year 

Accrued Benefit Obligation – March 31 $810,313 $803,840 
Market Value of Plan Assets – March 31 - - 
Funded Status – Deficit (810,313) (803,840) 
Employer Contributions After Measurement Date - 18,000 
Benefits Expense After Measurement Date (26,412) (25,220) 
Unamortized Net Actuarial (Gain) Loss 45,021 (6,759) 
Accrued Benefit Liability – June 30 $(791,702) $(817,819) 

 
Reconciliation of Change in Accrued Benefit Liability 

Accrued Benefit Liability – July 1  $817,820 $788,119 
Net expense for Fiscal Year 113,840 120,191 
Employer Contributions (139,958) (90,491) 
Accrued Benefit Liability – June 30 $791,702 $817,819 
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NOTE 8  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
 

 2023 2022 
Components of Net Benefit Expense 

Service Cost $73,241 $70,762 
Interest Cost 28,829 23,359 
Amortization of Net Actuarial Loss 11,770 26,071 
Net Benefit Expense $113,840 $120,191 

 
The significant actuarial assumptions adopted for measuring the School District’s accrued benefit 
obligations are:  
 

Discount Rate – April 1 3.25% 2.50% 
Discount Rate – March 31 4.00% 3.25% 
Long Term Salary Growth – April 1 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority 
Long Term Salary Growth – March 31 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority 
EARSL – March 31 
 

10.0 10.0 

 
 
NOTE 9 UNEARNED REVENUE 

 2023 2022 
Balance, beginning of year $472,429 $515,518 
Changes for the year:   
 Increase:   
        Tuition fees  361,732 455,892 
        Rental/Lease of facilities 9,762 16,537 
        
 371,494 472,429 

 Decrease:   
        Tuition fees  455,892 505,792 
        Rental/Lease of facilities 16,573 9,726 
 472,429 515,518 
        

Net changes for the year (100,935) (43,089) 
Balance, end of year $371,494 $472,429 
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NOTE 10 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 
  

 
Net Book Value: 

 
Net Book Value 

2023 
Net Book Value 

2022 

Sites $4,151,237 $4,151,237 
Buildings 40,536,749 40,350,559 
Furniture & Equipment 1,850,084 1,808,854 
Vehicles 474,989 415,650 
Computer Software 0 3,001 
Computer Hardware 103,036 144,954 
   
Total $47,116,095 $46,874,255 

 
June 30, 2023 

Cost Opening Cost 

 
Prior Period 
Adjustment Additions Disposals 

 
 Total 

2023 

Sites $4,151,237 $ $ $  $4,151,237 
Buildings 72,734,276  1,849,237 -  74,583,513 
Furniture & Equipment 2,646,402  306,587 292,253  2,660,736 
Vehicles 1,517,423  181,048 781,712  916,759 
Computer Software 30,013  - 30,013  0 
Computer Hardware 271,980  - 124,783  147,197 
       
Total Cost $81,351,331  $2,336,872 $1,228,761  $82,459,442 

 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Amortization  

 
Prior Period 
Adjustment Additions Disposals 

Total  
 2023 

Sites $ $ $ $ $ 
Buildings 32,383,717  1,663,047 - 34,046,764 
Furniture & Equipment 837,548  265,357 292,253 810,652 
Vehicles 1,101,773  121,709 781,712 441,770 
Computer Software 27,012  3,001 30,013 - 
Computer Hardware 127,026  41,918 124,783 44,161 
      
Total Amortization $34,477,076  $2,095,032 $1,228,761 $35,343,347 
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NOTE 10 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
 
June 30, 2022 

Cost Opening Cost 

Prior Period 
Adjustment 
(Note 20) Additions Disposals 

 
 Total 

 2022 

Sites $4,151,237 $ $ $  $4,151,237 
Buildings 69,879,612 1,394,540 1,460,124 -  72,734,276 
Furniture & Equipment 1,513,429  1,236,080 103,107  2,646,402 
Vehicles 1,579,437  21,332 83,346  1,517,423 
Computer Software 81,651  - 30,013  30,013 
Computer Hardware 137,996  147,198 13,214  271,980 
       
Total Cost $77,343,362 1,394,540 $2,864,734 $251,305  $81,351,331 

 
     

Accumulated 
Amortization 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Amortization  

 
Prior Period 

Adjustment 
(Note 20) Additions Disposals 

Total 
2022 

Sites $  $ $ $ 
Buildings 29,738,684 1,394,540 1,610,493 - 32,383,717 
Furniture & Equipment 732,663 - 207,992 103,107 837,548 
Vehicles 1,030,276 - 154,843 83,346 1,101,773 
Computer Software 67,484 - 11,166 51,638 27,012 
Computer Hardware 99,242 - 40,998 13,214 127,026 
      
Total Amortization $31,308,349 1,394,540 $2,025,492 $251,305 $34,477,076 

     
 

 

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES 
 
Ongoing Legal Proceedings 
 
In the ordinary course of operations, the School District has legal proceedings brought against it and 
provision has been included in liabilities where appropriate. It is the opinion of management that 
final determination of these claims will not have a material effect on the financial position or 
operations of the School District. 
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NOTE 12  EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS  
 

The School District and its employees contribute to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal Pension 

Plan (jointly trusteed pension plans). The boards of trustees for these plans, representing plan members 
and employers, are responsible for administering the pension plans, including investing assets and 

administering benefits. The plans are multi-employer defined benefit pension plans. Basic pension 

benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2022, the Teachers’ Pension Plan has about 51,000 

active members and approximately 41,000 retired members. As of December 31, 2022, the Municipal 

Pension Plan has about 240,000 active members, including approximately 30,000 from school districts.  

 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plans and 

adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member 

contribution rate to fund the plans. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age 

normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer contributions 

sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plans. This rate may be adjusted for the 

amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded 
actuarial liability. 

 

The most recent actuarial valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Plan as at December 31, 2020, indicated a 

$1,548 million surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.  

 

The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2021, indicated 

a $3,761 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.  

 

The school district paid $2,790,881 for employer contributions to the plans for the year ended June 
30, 2023 (2022: $2,456,619) 

 
The next valuation for the Teachers’ Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2023. The next valuation 
for the Municipal Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2024, with results available in 2025.  
 
Employers participating in the plans record their pension expense as the amount of employer 
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is 
because the plans record accrued liabilities and accrued assets for each plan in aggregate, resulting in 
no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual employers 
participating in the plans. 
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NOTE 13 INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
 
Interfund transfers between the operating, special purpose and capital funds for the year ended June 
30, 2023, were zero. 
 
 
NOTE 14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The School District is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia 
ministries, agencies, school districts, health authorities, colleges, universities, and crown 
corporations.  Transactions with these entities, unless disclosed separately, are considered to be in 
the normal course of operations and are recorded at the exchange amount. 
 
 
NOTE 15 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE  

The operations of the School District are dependent on continued funding from the Ministry of 
Education and Child Care and various governmental agencies to carry out its programs.  These 
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
 
NOTE 16 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 
 

Legal liabilities exist for the removal and disposal of asbestos and other environmentally hazardous 
materials within some district owned buildings that will undergo major renovations or demolition in 
the future.  A reasonable estimate of the fair value of the obligation has been recognized using the 
modified retroactive approach as at July 1, 2022 (see Note 20 – Prior Period Adjustment – Change in 
Accounting Policy).  The obligation has been measured at current cost as the timing of future cash 
flows cannot be reasonably determined.  These costs have been capitalized as part of the assets’ 
carrying value and are amortized over the assets’ estimated useful lives. 

  
  
Asset Retirement Obligation, July 1, 2022 (see Note 20)  $1,394,540 

Settlements during the year        11,763         

Asset Retirement Obligation, closing balance $1,382,777 
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NOTE 17 BUDGET FIGURES 
 
Budget figures included in the financial statements were approved by the Board through the 
adoption of an amended annual budget on February 15, 2023.  The Board adopted a preliminary 
annual budget on June 22, 2022.  The amended budget is used for comparison purposes, as these are 
based on actual student enrollments.  The difference between the two budgets is as follows: 
 
 

      

   2023 2023  

      Amended Preliminary Difference 

Revenues     

 Provincial Grants    

  Ministry of Education 41,372,480 38,251,821 3,120,659 

  Other 
              

100,000   
                      

125,000   (25,000)   

      

 Tuition 874,182             864,000             10,182 

 Other Revenue 2,087,439 1,886,184 201,255 

 Rentals and Leases 125,900              115,900  10,000 

 Investment Income 
             

107,500  37,500 70,000 

 Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue          1,663,578  
        

1,663,578                      -  

 Total Revenue       46,331,079 42,943,983 
               

3,387,096  

Expenses     

 Instruction       38,369,569  35,764,731 2,604,838 

 District Administration 1,999,981  1,817,655 182,326 

 Operations and Maintenance 5,996,168  5,709,306 286,862 

 Transportation and Housing 
        

1,203,775  1,103,775 100,000 

                                              

 Total Expenses       47,569,493  44,395,467 3,174,026  

Surplus (Deficit) for the year 
       

(1,238,414) (1,451,484) 213,070 

Effects of change in Tangible Capital Assets    

 Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets       -  -        -        

 Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets        1,929,649  1,929,649 - 

 Total Effect of change in Tangible     

 Capital Assets       1,929,649  1,929,649 - 

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets    

(Debt)       691,235 478,165       213,070 
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NOTE 18 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS  

Internally Restricted (appropriated) by Board for:  2023 2022 
School & Program Based Resources: 
Technology Initiatives  
Library / Learning Commons Re-vitalization 
Achievement & Wellness Initiatives 
Indigenous Initiatives 
Committee Initiatives (e.g. SOGI etc) 
Child Youth Counselling (ICY) 
Strategic Planning Initiatives 
Future Capital Cost Share (Edgehill Addition) 
Teacher Mentorship 
Student Furniture & Equipment 
School Resources Carried Forward 
 

    
$      - 

- 
359,633 

- 
- 

179,310 
250,000 
100,000 
33,210 

- 
12,912 

 

   
$      264,000 

200,000 
684,356 
64,016 
30,000 

- 
- 
- 

39,448 
50,000 
35,815 

 
       

Subtotal Internally Restricted Operating Surplus    935,065    1,367,635 
    

Unrestricted Operating Surplus (Contingency) 
 
 

Local Capital: 
Replacement Fund for Artificial Playfield  
Equipment Replacement Fund  
Portables Classrooms 
Administration Building Upgrade 
Maintenance Facility Upgrade 
 
 
Investment In Capital Assets 
 

 979,178 
     1,914,243         

 
 

- 
155,305 
140,213 
241,677 

- 

537,195 
 

8,501,608 

1,797,320 
     3,164,955         

 
 

75,000 
186,353 
646,680 

- 
59,440 

967,473 
 

9,736,707 

Total Available for Future Operations  $10,953,046 $13,869,135 

 
 
 
NOTE 19 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
All significant financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments of the School District are 
either recognized or disclosed in the financial statements together with other information relevant 
for making a reasonable assessment of future cash flows, interest rate risk and credit risk. 
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NOTE 19 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 

 Credit Risk 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the School District to concentrations of 
credit risk consist primarily of other receivables.  The maximum credit risk exposure 
is $347,045 (2022 - $200,505).   

 
The School District manages its credit risk by performing regular credit assessments 
of its customers and provides allowances for potentially uncollectible accounts 
receivable. 

 
 Liquidity Risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the School District will encounter difficulty in meeting 
obligations associated with financial liabilities. 
   
The School District manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and 
forecasted cash flows from operations and anticipated investing activities to ensure, 
as far as possible to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, 
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the School District’s reputation. 

 
 Foreign Currency Risk 

 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.  In seeking to 
manage the risks from foreign exchange rate fluctuations, the School District does 
not hold significant funds in U.S. dollars in order to reduce their risk against adverse 
movements in the foreign exchange rates. 

 
 Financial Asset Impairment 

At each year-end date, the School District is required to evaluate and record any 
other-than-temporary impairment of its financial assets, other than those classified as 
held for trading.  Accordingly, the School District has compared the carrying value of 
each of these financial assets to its fair value as at June 30, 2023.  No provision for 
impairment was recorded in the current year, as the fair value of all financial assets 
tested exceeded their carrying value. 

 
 Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities approximates their fair value due to the short-term maturities of these 
items. 



  
 
 
 

POWELL RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION  
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47  

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 

 

 

 Page 29 of 29 June 2023 

NOTE 19 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 

 Risk Management Policy 
The School District, as part of its operations, has established objectives (i.e. hedging 
of risk exposures and avoidance of undue concentrations of risk) to mitigate credit 
risk as risk management objectives.  In seeking to meet these objectives, the School 
District follows a risk management policy approved by its Board of Trustees. 

 
 
 
NOTE 20 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 
 
On July 1, 2022 the School District adopted Canadian public sector accounting standard PS 3280 
Asset Retirement Obligations. This new standard addresses the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of legal obligations associated with the retirement of certain tangible 
capital assets such as asbestos removal in buildings that will undergo major renovation or demolition 
in the future (see Note 16). This standard was adopted using the modified retroactive approach.  
 
On July 1, 2022 the School District recognized an asset retirement obligation relating to several owned 
buildings that contain asbestos and other hazardous materials. The liability has been measured at 
current cost as the timing and amounts of future cash flows cannot be estimated. The associated costs 
have been reported as an increase to the carrying value of the associated tangible capital assets. 
Accumulated amortization has been recorded from the later of, the date of acquisition of the related 
asset or April 1, 1988 (effective date of the Hazardous Waste Regulation (April 1, 1988) – Part 6 – 
Management of Specific Hazardous Wastes). 
 
The impact of the prior period adjustment on the June 30, 2022 comparative amounts is as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NOTE 21 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
 
Certain prior year comparative figures have been restated to conform to the current year financial 
statement presentation.  

 Increase (Decrease) 

  
Asset Retirement Obligation (liability) $ 1,394,540 
Tangible Capital Assets – cost    1,394,540 
Tangible Capital Assets – accumulated amortization    1,394,540 
Operations & Maintenance Expense – Asset amortization (2022)                  0 
Accumulated Surplus – Invested in Capital Assets   (1,394,540) 
  



Schedule 1 (Unaudited)

2023 2022

Operating Special Purpose Capital Actual Actual

Fund Fund Fund (Restated - Note 20)

$ $ $ $ $

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 3,164,955            9,309,640            12,474,595          13,223,317          

Prior Period Adjustments (1,394,540)           

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year, as restated 3,164,955            -                           9,309,640            12,474,595          11,828,777          

Changes for the year

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1,250,712)           (270,837)              (1,521,549)           645,818               

Net Changes for the year (1,250,712)           -                           (270,837)              (1,521,549)           645,818               

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), end of year - Statement 2 1,914,243            -                           9,038,803            10,953,046          12,474,595          

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2023

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 07, 2023  15:19 Page 30



Schedule 2 (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 20)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 36,074,548        37,265,237        33,948,066        

Other 100,000             115,554             145,872             

Tuition 874,182             887,702             1,192,761          

Other Revenue 1,212,439          1,509,089          1,421,794          

Rentals and Leases 125,900             176,367             143,648             

Investment Income 100,000             207,361             49,191               

Total Revenue 38,487,069        40,161,310        36,901,332        

Expenses

Instruction 32,475,807        33,415,546        29,106,537        

District Administration 1,843,764          1,856,275          1,548,727          

Operations and Maintenance 4,097,342          4,850,140          4,257,883          

Transportation and Housing 1,049,999          1,290,061          1,033,268          

Total Expense 39,466,912        41,412,022        35,946,415        

Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (979,843)            (1,250,712)         954,917             

Budgeted Appropriation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 979,843             

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Local Capital (500,000)            

Total Net Transfers -                        -                        (500,000)            

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                        (1,250,712)         454,917             

Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 3,164,955          2,710,038          

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 1,914,243          3,164,955          

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year

Internally Restricted (Note 18) 935,065             1,367,635          

Unrestricted 979,178             1,797,320          

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 1,914,243          3,164,955          

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Operating Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2023

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 07, 2023  15:19 Page 31



Schedule 2A (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 20)

$ $ $

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education and Child Care 35,675,455        36,292,353        34,485,481        

ISC/LEA Recovery (974,724)            (1,032,389)         (974,724)            

Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants

Pay Equity 243,304             243,304             243,304             

Funding for Graduated Adults 6,601                 7,860                 

Student Transportation Fund 91,754               91,754               91,754               

FSA Scorer Grant 3,753                 7,506                 7,506                 

Early Learning Framework (ELF) Implementation 466                    466                    1,885                 

Labour Settlement Funding 955,540             1,394,951          

Equity Scan 79,000               81,381               79,000               

ICY Clinical Counsellor Funding 179,310             

District Capacity Building - Early Learning 6,000                 

Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 36,074,548        37,265,237        33,948,066        

Provincial Grants - Other 100,000             115,554             145,872             

Tuition

Summer School Fees 10,182               10,582               

International and Out of Province Students 864,000             877,120             1,192,761          

Total Tuition 874,182             887,702             1,192,761          

Other Revenues

Other School District/Education Authorities 120,009             120,009             129,477             

Funding from First Nations 974,724             1,032,389          974,724             

Miscellaneous

Misc. Billings & Recoveries 50,000               81,520               115,220             

Purchase Card Rebate 17,000               21,898               17,595               

Tla'amin Service Contract 50,706               37,920               

Art Starts Grant 9,914                 8,343                 

Cafeteria Revenue 132,534             128,395             

PAC Contributions 10,000               48,040               

Before & After School Care 62,905               

Total Other Revenue 1,212,439          1,509,089          1,421,794          

Rentals and Leases 125,900             176,367             143,648             

Investment Income 100,000             207,361             49,191               

Total Operating Revenue 38,487,069        40,161,310        36,901,332        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 2B (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 20)

$ $ $

Salaries

Teachers 13,614,483        13,464,576        12,122,027        

Principals and Vice Principals 2,384,399          2,607,118          2,019,687          

Educational Assistants 2,712,723          2,537,629          2,065,719          

Support Staff 2,911,252          3,181,765          2,738,334          

Other Professionals 2,084,800          1,552,055          1,576,031          

Substitutes 1,486,705          1,656,046          1,226,938          

Total Salaries 25,194,362        24,999,189        21,748,736        

Employee Benefits 5,653,627          5,762,871          4,833,000          

Total Salaries and Benefits 30,847,989        30,762,060        26,581,736        

Services and Supplies

Services 3,792,640          5,194,246          4,395,505          

Student Transportation 7,700                 4,195                 6,531                 

Professional Development and Travel 290,551             339,474             299,847             

Rentals and Leases 298,329             258,877             270,961             

Dues and Fees 379,383             421,730             515,358             

Insurance 105,000             103,239             82,281               

Supplies 3,040,820          3,656,060          2,978,752          

Utilities 704,500             672,141             815,444             

Total Services and Supplies 8,618,923          10,649,962        9,364,679          

Total Operating Expense 39,466,912        41,412,022        35,946,415        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Schedule of Operating Expense by Object
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Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Principals and Educational Support Other

Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total

Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 10,972,839          137,894               277,004               319,009               1,246,045            12,952,791          

1.03 Career Programs 65,971                 59,199                 29,500                 154,670               

1.07 Library Services 122,464               8,397                   130,861               

1.08 Counselling 326,247               65,432                 391,679               

1.10 Special Education 1,441,020            218,782               2,537,629            14,624                 375,064               145,857               4,732,976            

1.30 English Language Learning 12,406                 12,406                 

1.31 Indigenous Education 370,309               135,193               33,347                 4,368                   5,748                   548,965               

1.41 School Administration 1,645,334            716,878               31,533                 2,393,745            

1.60 Summer School 71,611                 71,611                 

1.61 Continuing Education 84,500                 84,500                 

1.62 International and Out of Province Students 68,820                 64,805                 61,851                 627                      196,103               

Total Function 1 13,464,576          2,326,639            2,537,629            1,071,353            760,292               1,509,818            21,670,307          

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration 280,479               236,335               516,814               

4.40 School District Governance 84,365                 84,365                 

4.41 Business Administration 191,333               378,376               569,709               

Total Function 4 -                          280,479               -                          191,333               699,076               -                          1,170,888            

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 18,713                 24,669                 43,382                 

5.50 Maintenance Operations 1,226,191            54,735                 97,836                 1,378,762            

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 83,068                 83,068                 

5.56 Utilities -                          

Total Function 5 -                          -                          -                          1,327,972            79,404                 97,836                 1,505,212            

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 21,685                 13,283                 34,968                 

7.70 Student Transportation 569,422               48,392                 617,814               

Total Function 7 -                          -                          -                          591,107               13,283                 48,392                 652,782               

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Functions 1 - 9 13,464,576          2,607,118            2,537,629            3,181,765            1,552,055            1,656,046            24,999,189          

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction

1.03 Career Programs

1.07 Library Services

1.08 Counselling

1.10 Special Education

1.30 English Language Learning

1.31 Indigenous Education

1.41 School Administration

1.60 Summer School

1.61 Continuing Education

1.62 International and Out of Province Students

Total Function 1

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration

4.40 School District Governance

4.41 Business Administration

Total Function 4

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration

5.50 Maintenance Operations

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds

5.56 Utilities

Total Function 5

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration

7.70 Student Transportation

Total Function 7

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9

Total Functions 1 - 9

Year Ended June 30, 2023

2023 2023 2022

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and Actual Budget Actual

Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies (Note 17) (Restated - Note 20)

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

12,952,791          3,049,026            16,001,817          3,332,830            19,334,647          18,717,393          17,003,573          

154,670               38,261                 192,931               9,066                   201,997               194,130               168,792               

130,861               31,569                 162,430               78,943                 241,373               226,737               163,062               

391,679               81,666                 473,345               804                      474,149               433,460               454,609               

4,732,976            1,145,913            5,878,889            2,469,481            8,348,370            7,935,008            7,145,763            

12,406                 2,964                   15,370                 2,094                   17,464                 23,456                 16,634                 

548,965               122,799               671,764               82,284                 754,048               790,476               395,687               

2,393,745            508,815               2,902,560            132,010               3,034,570            3,111,932            2,649,694            

71,611                 9,131                   80,742                 19,888                 100,630               97,500                 75,606                 

84,500                 20,280                 104,780               2,500                   107,280               104,780               117,187               

196,103               47,121                 243,224               557,794               801,018               840,935               915,930               

21,670,307          5,057,545            26,727,852          6,687,694            33,415,546          32,475,807          29,106,537          

516,814               111,764               628,578               97,925                 726,503               765,054               692,733               

84,365                 5,142                   89,507                 118,784               208,291               164,500               164,205               

569,709               133,142               702,851               218,630               921,481               914,210               691,789               

1,170,888            250,048               1,420,936            435,339               1,856,275            1,843,764            1,548,727            

43,382                 10,220                 53,602                 116,950               170,552               243,789               152,981               

1,378,762            273,121               1,651,883            1,839,087            3,490,970            2,932,744            3,009,464            

83,068                 18,739                 101,807               409,875               511,682               216,309               273,896               

-                          -                          676,936               676,936               704,500               821,542               

1,505,212            302,080               1,807,292            3,042,848            4,850,140            4,097,342            4,257,883            

34,968                 8,573                   43,541                 4,574                   48,115                 73,215                 67,024                 

617,814               144,625               762,439               479,507               1,241,946            976,784               966,244               

652,782               153,198               805,980               484,081               1,290,061            1,049,999            1,033,268            

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

24,999,189          5,762,871            30,762,060          10,649,962          41,412,022          39,466,912          35,946,415          
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Schedule 3 (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 20)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 5,297,932          5,450,472          4,441,945          

Other Revenue 875,000             2,174,977          1,017,033          

Total Revenue 6,172,932          7,625,449          5,458,978          

Expenses

Instruction 5,893,762          7,320,953          5,239,696          

District Administration 156,217             98,342               98,945               

Operations and Maintenance 122,953             206,154             120,337             

Total Expense 6,172,932          7,625,449          5,458,978          

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        -                        -                        

Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        -                        -                        

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year -                        -                        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom

Facility Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Enhancement

Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Fund - Overhead

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year 213,021              330,932              11,376                10,782                  

District Entered 9                           

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year, as restated -                          -                          213,021              330,932              11,376                -                          -                        10,791                  -                          

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 122,953              122,425              128,000              14,700                216,053            214,916                124,939              

Other 300,070              1,872,385           

122,953              122,425              300,070              1,872,385           128,000              14,700                216,053            214,916                124,939              

Less: Allocated to Revenue 122,953              122,425              449,251              1,725,726           139,376              14,700                215,255            217,972                124,939              

Deferred Revenue, end of year -                          -                          63,840                477,591              -                          -                          798                   7,735                    -                          

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 122,953              122,425              139,376              14,700                215,255            217,972                124,939              

Other Revenue 449,251              1,725,726           

122,953              122,425              449,251              1,725,726           139,376              14,700                215,255            217,972                124,939              

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 125,134            

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants 109,308              103,304              37,138              

Support Staff 168,875                45,244                

Other Professionals 6,696                    

Substitutes 5,182                  12,565                  67,320                

-                          109,308              -                          -                          103,304              5,182                  162,272            188,136                112,564              

Employee Benefits 13,117                24,034                518                     28,781              18,228                  3,018                  

Services and Supplies 122,953              449,251              1,725,726           12,038                9,000                  24,202              11,608                  9,357                  

122,953              122,425              449,251              1,725,726           139,376              14,700                215,255            217,972                124,939              

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                            -                          

Interfund Transfers

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                            -                          

Net Revenue (Expense) -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                            -                          

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

District Entered

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year, as restated

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other Revenue

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal Safe

Classroom Classroom Mental Changing Return to Seamless Student & SEY2KT

Enhancement Enhancement Health Results for Class / Day Family JUST (Early Years to

Fund - Staffing Fund - Remedies in Schools Young Children Ventilation Fund Kindergarten Affordability B4 Kindergarten)

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

50,000                

-                          -                          -                          -                          50,000                -                          -                          -                          -                          

1,860,910           376,582              55,000                6,000                  55,400                343,568              25,000                19,000                

1,860,910           376,582              55,000                6,000                  -                          55,400                343,568              25,000                19,000                

1,860,910           376,582              55,000                6,000                  50,000                55,400                290,757              25,000                19,000                

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          52,811                -                          -                          

1,860,910           376,582              55,000                6,000                  50,000                55,400                290,757              25,000                19,000                

1,860,910           376,582              55,000                6,000                  50,000                55,400                290,757              25,000                19,000                

1,512,921           259,718              29,600                

59,032                

42,661                18,548                

7,500                  5,455                  14,545                

1,512,921           318,750              37,100                5,455                  -                          42,661                -                          18,548                14,545                

347,989              57,832                5,900                  545                     10,239                4,452                  1,455                  

12,000                50,000                2,500                  290,757              2,000                  3,000                  

1,860,910           376,582              55,000                6,000                  50,000                55,400                290,757              25,000                19,000                

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

District Entered

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year, as restated

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other Revenue

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

ECL Auditory 

(Early Care Outreach

& Learning) Program TOTAL

$ $ $

216,593              832,704              

9                         

-                          216,593              832,713              

175,000              1,362,610           5,223,056           

2,172,455           

175,000              1,362,610           7,395,511           

175,000              1,579,203           7,625,449           

-                          -                          602,775              

175,000              1,579,203           5,450,472           

2,174,977           

175,000              1,579,203           7,625,449           

19,844                1,947,217           

124,167              124,167              

308,782              

17,500                77,789                370,617              

324,317              331,013              

112,567              

141,667              421,950              3,194,363           

28,333                71,109                615,550              

5,000                  1,086,144           3,815,536           

175,000              1,579,203           7,625,449           

-                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 4 (Unaudited)

2023 2022

Budget Invested in Tangible Local Fund Actual

(Note 17) Capital Assets Capital Balance (Restated - Note 20)

$ $ $ $ $

Revenues

Investment Income 7,500             69,120           69,120           4,200                

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,663,578      1,755,075                   1,755,075      1,712,193         

Total Revenue 1,671,078      1,755,075                   69,120           1,824,195      1,716,393         

Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 1,775,873      1,973,323                   1,973,323      1,870,649         

Transportation and Housing 153,776         121,709                      121,709         154,843            

Total Expense 1,929,649      2,095,032                   -                    2,095,032      2,025,492         

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (258,571)        (339,957)                     69,120           (270,837)        (309,099)           

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Local Capital -                    500,000            

Total Net Transfers -                    -                                 -                    -                    500,000            

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital 487,635                      (487,635)        -                    

Settlement of Asset Retirement Obligation 11,763                        (11,763)         -                    

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 499,398                      (499,398)        -                    

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (258,571)        159,441                      (430,278)        (270,837)        190,901            

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 8,342,167                   967,473         9,309,640      10,513,279       

Prior Period Adjustments

To Recognize Asset Retirement Obligation (1,394,540)        

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year, as restated 8,342,167                   967,473         9,309,640      9,118,739         

Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of year 8,501,608                   537,195         9,038,803      9,309,640         

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Capital Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2023

2023 Actual
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Schedule 4A (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer

Sites Buildings Equipment Vehicles Software Hardware Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost, beginning of year 4,151,237           72,734,276          2,646,402           1,517,423           30,013                271,980              81,351,331          

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Purchases from:

Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 1,691,690           1,691,690           

Deferred Capital Revenue - Other 157,547              157,547              

Local Capital 306,587              181,048              487,635              

-                          1,849,237           306,587              181,048              -                          -                          2,336,872           

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 292,253              781,712              30,013                124,783              1,228,761           

-                          -                          292,253              781,712              30,013                124,783              1,228,761           

Cost, end of year 4,151,237           74,583,513          2,660,736           916,759              -                          147,197              82,459,442          

Work in Progress, end of year -                          

Cost and Work in Progress, end of year 4,151,237           74,583,513          2,660,736           916,759              -                          147,197              82,459,442          

Accumulated Amortization, beginning of year 32,383,717          837,548              1,101,773           27,012                127,026              34,477,076          

Changes for the Year

Increase:  Amortization for the Year 1,663,047           265,357              121,709              3,001                  41,918                2,095,032           

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 292,253              781,712              30,013                124,783              1,228,761           

-                          292,253              781,712              30,013                124,783              1,228,761           

Accumulated Amortization, end of year 34,046,764          810,652              441,770              -                          44,161                35,343,347          

Tangible Capital Assets - Net 4,151,237           40,536,749          1,850,084           474,989              -                          103,036              47,116,095          

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Tangible Capital Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 4C (Unaudited)

Bylaw Other Other Total

Capital Provincial Capital Capital

$ $ $ $

Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year 33,960,701        2,180,538          996,309             37,137,548        

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Capital Additions 1,691,690          157,547             1,849,237          

1,691,690          157,547             -                        1,849,237          

Decrease:

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,601,659          90,488               62,928               1,755,075          

1,601,659          90,488               62,928               1,755,075          

Net Changes for the Year 90,031               67,059               (62,928)              94,162               

Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 34,050,732        2,247,597          933,381             37,231,710        

Work in Progress, beginning of year -                        

Changes for the Year

Net Changes for the Year -                        -                        -                        -                        

Work in Progress, end of year -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 34,050,732        2,247,597          933,381             37,231,710        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 4D (Unaudited)

MECC Other

Bylaw Restricted Provincial Land Other

Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance, beginning of year 888,000             888,000             

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 1,691,690          1,691,690          

1,691,690          -                        -                        -                        -                        1,691,690          

Decrease:

Transferred to DCR - Capital Additions 1,691,690          157,547             1,849,237          

1,691,690          -                        157,547             -                        -                        1,849,237          

Net Changes for the Year -                        -                        (157,547)            -                        -                        (157,547)            

Balance, end of year -                        -                        730,453             -                        -                        730,453             

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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School District 47 

Operations Summary 
 

FACILITIES 
Below is a summary by school, identifying the main projects completed during the 2022/2023 school year. 
The list also includes projects started this summer for 2023/2024.  

 
Brooks Secondary School 
2022/2023 

• Completion of the artificial turf field project  

• Re-finished gymnasium floor 

2023/2024 
• Completed paving of the rear courtyard  

• Acquisition and installation of two new portable classrooms  
 

Texada Elementary School 
2022/2023 

• LED Lighting Upgrade  

• Window replacement  

• Furnace replacement – Annex Building 

• Storm drain upgrades 
 

Kelly Creek Community School 
2022/2023 

• Interior renovations to gymnasium area kitchen and canteen 

• Asbestos flooring abatement in gymnasium block 

• Acquisition and installation of athletic equipment storage units 

2023/2024 
• Setup two portable classrooms to be renovated later in the school year 

• Renovations to four of the six washroom spaces within the school 

• Substantial completion of an LED lighting upgrade 

• Removal and installation of new hallway ceilings 

• Renovations to the new daycare have started and will continue throughout the balance of the 
calendar year 

 

Westview Elementary School 
2022/2023 

• Solar System Installation  

• Re-finished gymnasium floor 

 



Westview Elementary School (continued) 
2023/2024 

• Installation of new playground equipment 
 

Edgehill Elementary School 
2022/2023 

• Plumbing upgrade to add hot water to classrooms 

• Upgraded field and play area drainage 

• Installation of block wall to support relocation of three classroom portables 

• Ongoing planning of new daycare centre 

2023/2024 
• Relocated three classroom portables 

• Relocated school garden to rear of the school adjacent to outdoor classroom gazebo 

• Completed minor renovations to student services and office spaces 

• Re-paved hardcourt play area 

• Installation of outdoor washroom facility adjacent to maintenance building 

 
Henderson Elementary School 
2022/2023 

• Gymnasium Roof Replacement 

• Electrical Service Upgrade & Solar Installation 

• Washroom Upgrades  

• Extended block wall adjacent to playground 

• Completed concrete sidewalks and improved playground access 
 

James Thomson Elementary School 
2022/2023 

• Low Slope (Flat) Roof Replacement  

• Blow in insulation for heritage annex 

• Plumbing upgrade to add hot water to classrooms 

• Hallway and classroom flooring replacement 

2023/2024 
• Asbestos flooring abatement and new flooring throughout the rear of the gymnasium block 

• New flooring installed in library 

• Completion of new ceiling in main building hallway 

• Substantial completion of LED lighting upgrade 

• Substantial completion of mechanical and ventilation upgrade in both buildings 
 

Maintenance Facility  
2022/2023 

• Completed majority of upgrades to maintenance and storage facility in support of new daycare at 
Edgehill 

2023/2024 
• Demolition of old maintenance facility in support of new daycare at Edgehill 



TRANSPORTATION 
• Total Registered Ridership:  841* 

➢ Highschool: 517 

➢ Elementary: 324  

Includes French Immersion: 99 
Includes Courtesy Riders total:  170 

- Westview: 58,  
- Kelly Creek: 62,  
- Henderson: 29,  
- James Thomson: 21,  
- Brooks: 0) 

*Applications up to August 25th processed with late applicants being issued passes following confirmation 

of ridership during the first week of school. 

TECHNOLOGY 
As with every summer, the technology department continues to be busy focusing on the changes and fixes 

that are best done with fewer people in the buildings. From upgrading the tools that nobody sees to 

supporting changes to the physical environment at schools.  

• Server Upgrades (including Virtual Servers) at all sites (from 2012 to 2019) with documentation  
• Active Directory/DNS reconfiguration with documentation 
• Firewall Upgrades to recommended versions (IBM Report) 
• Supported the move of 5 portables (elementary) and installation of 2 more (secondary) with fibre 

lines, Access Points (wifi) and projectors. 
• Continued the evergreen/refresh series with a focus on Brooks Secondary which included 125 

laptops and 20 desktops - and a significant improvement to the digital media lab  
• Refreshed the printer service as part of server upgrade 
• Refreshed Access Points to have a unified IP system 
• Updated switches at Kelly Creek - identified needed switch purchase for 2024 upgrades at Brooks 
• Setting up Microsoft InTune for user device management 
• Supporting SchoolBundle with our new website presence 
• Configured MyEducation to comply with the new Report Order Guidelines 
• Bus Garage transition to SD47 network 

 



 

 

 
 

 
Ministry of Education 
and Child Care 

Office of the Minister 
 

Mailing Address: 
PO Box 9045 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria BC  V8W 9E2 

Location: 
Parliament Buildings 
Victoria 

 

August 1, 2023 

 

Ref: 291324 

 

 

Dale Lawson, Board Chair 

School District No. 47 (Powell River) 

Email: dale.lawson@sd47.bc.ca 

 

RE: School Trustee Codes of Conduct Criteria 

 

Dear Dale Lawson: 

 

The Ministry of Education and Child Care and the BC School Trustees Association (BCSTA), in 

partnership with a sector advisory committee,2 has co-developed voluntary provincial criteria for 

school trustee codes of conduct. The intent of this project is to provide trustees with clarity on 

their roles and responsibilities respecting conduct. Codes of conduct can assist boards to focus on 

their core responsibilities to deliver educational programs and to support safe and inclusive 

schools and workplaces.  

 

In the June 2, 2023, DM Bulletin, the Ministry and the BCSTA released the following criteria for 

school trustees codes of conduct: 

o Emphasis on student achievement, equity, and well-being; 

o Alignment with BCSTA’s six principles/standards (integrity, respect, 

confidentiality, responsibility, conflict of interest and relationships); 

o Alignment with existing provincial and federal legislation (i.e., Criminal Code, 

BC Human Rights Code, Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, 

School Act, Workers’ Compensation Act); 

o Provisions on: 

▪ Respectful workplaces & relationships with others; 

▪ Anti-racism, reconciliation & relations with local First Nations; 

▪ Acceptable use of social media; 

o Policies and procedures for breaches and sanctions with public accountability; 

o Mechanisms to regularly review and affirm the code; 

o Board training, including with trustee onboarding; and 

o Plain language. 

 

…/2 

 
2 The Committee includes representatives from the Ministry, BCSTA, the BC Association of School Business Officials 

(BCASBO), the BC Public School Employers' Association (BCPSEA), the BC School Superintendents Association (BCSSA), 

and the First Nations Education Steering Committee (FNESC). 
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To support boards and senior district staff in revising their codes over the 2023/24 school year, a 

guidelines document and training supports are available here.  

 

Furthermore, a scan of all BC boards’ codes of conduct has been completed to better understand 

and support individual boards in revising their codes of conduct. Based on the scan, the School 

District No. 47 (Powell River) Board is recommended to review and update the trustee codes of 

conduct to reflect the standards outlined in the criteria and by including a breaches and sanctions 

component. I recommend working with your board to review and update the code with the new 

provincial criteria. If the board would like to collaborate on or receive support updating the code 

of conduct and corresponding components, or if you have any questions or updates on the 

criteria, please contact the Ministry of Education and Child Care by email at 

EDUC.Governance.Legislation@gov.bc.ca.  

 

The Ministry and the BCSTA are requesting that boards submit their revised codes to 

EDUC.Governance.Legislation@gov.bc.ca by April 30, 2024. 

 

We look forward to working in partnership with the School District No. 47 (Powell River) to 

continue to support student achievement, equity, and well-being.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Rachna Singh 

Minister 

 

Attachments: School Trustees Codes of Conduct: Provincial Criteria Guidelines 

 

pc: Christina Zacharuk, Deputy Minister 

 Cloe Nicholls, Assistant Deputy Minister  

 Suzanne Hoffman, CEO, BC School Trustees Association 

 Carolyn Broady, President, BC School Trustees Association 

 Jay Yule, Superintendent, School District No. 47 (Powell River) 
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SCHOOL TRUSTEES CODES OF CONDUCT: 
PROVINCIAL CRITERIA GUIDELINES 

 

CONTEXT 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this document is to set out best practices and provide guidelines for the voluntary 
development or refinement of a board of education’s (‘board’) school trustee (‘trustee’) code of 
conduct.  

This document is meant to be a resource to assist boards in the review of their trustee code of conduct 
and related policies and processes. The criteria outlined below will help set a common approach and 
ensure boards can focus on their core responsibilities to deliver an educational program and to support 
safe and inclusive schools and workplaces. 

This document was developed in collaboration between the Ministry of Education and Child Care and 
the BC School Trustees Association. Its content is based on extensive research including a literature 
review, a cross-jurisdictional scan, interviews with experts, and learnings from other sectors. This 
document is not intended as legal advice and should not be relied upon for that purpose. Boards are 
responsible for developing codes of conduct in their respective districts. Boards are encouraged to seek 
independent legal advice and/or support from other sources, should circumstances warrant. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CRITERIA OVERVIEW 

The Ministry of Education and Child Care (‘the Ministry’ or ‘ECC’), together with the BC School Trustees 
Association (‘BCSTA’) and education partners and rightsholders, have developed the following criteria 
for codes of conduct for school trustees. The code of conduct criteria is meant to support boards by 
providing trustees with a clear understanding of roles and expectations on conduct, as well as 
approaches to investigate breaches of conduct, determine consequences, and restore relationships. It 
will help ensure boards have the necessary tools and resources to focus decisions on the best interest of 
students. 

What is a code of conduct? Codes, or Standards of Conduct: 

• Ensure values that guide ethical behaviour and norms for trustee 
relationships; 

• Promote awareness regarding trustee roles and responsibilities; and 
• Encourage respect for divergent views so that boards can focus on 

student achievement, equity and well-being. 
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It is highly recommended that boards work together with district senior staff to review their codes of 
conduct to ensure there is: 

 Emphasis on student achievement, equity and well-being; 
 Alignment with BCSTA’s principles/standards for codes of conduct: 

o Confidentiality, [addressing] conflicts of interest, integrity, relationships, respect, and 
responsibility; 

 Alignment with existing provincial and federal legislation; 
 Provisions on: 

o Respectful workplaces & relationships with others; 
o Anti-racism, reconciliation & relations with local First Nations; 
o Acceptable use of social media; 

 Policies and procedures for breaches and sanctions with public accountability; 
 Mechanisms to regularly review and affirm the code; 
 Board training, including with trustee onboarding; and 
 The incorporation of plain language. 

CRITERIA GUIDELINES 

Together with education partners and rightsholders,1 the Ministry and the BCSTA have applied research, 
legal findings, and expert insights to develop the following criteria for province-wide standards for codes 
of conduct. It is strongly recommended that boards work collaboratively to discuss and develop and/or 
refine their codes of conduct. The discussions arising from the review process at the board and district 
senior staff level will be as important as the updates that the board will make to its code of conduct. 

The BCSTA and ECC extend appreciation to the boards identified in the following section for allowing 
excerpts of their policies and guidelines to be used throughout this document.   

EMPHASIS ON STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT, EQUITY AND WELL-BEING 
Under the School Act, a board of education is responsible, collectively, for the improvement of student 
achievement in their district. For example, boards may wish to include statements such as: 

“Trustees make decisions in terms of the educational welfare of 
children/students and strive for public schools that will meet the needs of all 
students.” 

-- SD 73, Kamloops-Thompson 

  

 
1 The Ministry and BCSTA worked with an advisory committee (including the First Nations Education Steering 
Committee (FNESC), BC Public School Employers’ Association (BCPSEA), BC School Superintendents Association 
(BCSSA), and BC Association of School Business Officials (BCASBO). 
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ALIGNMENT WITH BCSTA’S CORE VALUES 
The BCSTA and best practices from other jurisdictions and organizations recommend that codes of 
conduct reflect the principles/standards of confidentiality, [addressing] conflict of interest, integrity, 
relationships, respect and responsibilities. These standards or principles are interrelated. Boards may 
integrate these throughout codes and/or combine them with other relevant criteria and provisions. 

CONFIDENTIALITY  
This commonly covers issues around trustees maintaining confidentiality, including of information 
discussed in closed sessions. Boards may wish to include provisions such as: 

“Trustees shall preserve the confidentiality of information discussed at closed 
school board or committee meetings and shall not release privileged 
information in any format to the public until the Board has done so in an official 
capacity.” 

-- SD 44, North Vancouver 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
The School Act requires trustees to voluntarily and immediately declare any pecuniary conflict of 
interest (direct, indirect or deemed) in matters before the board or a committee of the board. Boards 
may wish to reference these requirements in their codes of conduct with relevant provisions, such as: 

“As a trustee, I will not use my role as Trustee for my own personal advantage 
or for the advantage of my friends, supporters, or business. If I become aware 
that I am in a position that creates a conflict of interest (direct, indirect; 
statutory or common law), I will declare the nature and extent of the conflict at 
a meeting of the Board of Education and abstain from deliberating or voting on 
the issue giving rise to the conflict.”  

-- SD 6 Rocky Mountain 

INTEGRITY  
Integrity includes reference to other criteria such as being student-centered and referencing applicable 
legislation. Integrity may also include: 

• Trustees making all decisions based on available facts and their independent judgment and 
refusing to surrender that judgment to individuals or special interest groups; and 

• Trustees acting with the highest standards of professional integrity and in a manner that inspires 
public confidence in the board. 

Boards may wish to directly reference integrity in their codes of conduct provisions: 

“Board members will do everything possible to maintain the integrity, 
confidence, and dignity of the office of School Trustee.”  

-- SD 35, Langley 
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RELATIONSHIPS  
Relationships include those with other trustees, with district staff, and with all members of an 
educational community. This includes working respectfully with others, recognizing the importance of 
good relationships to boards’ core responsibilities to deliver educational programs and support safe and 
inclusive schools and workplaces. Boards may wish to include reference to the principle of relationships: 

“Trustees shall work with fellow board members in a spirit of harmony and 
cooperation and be respectful of differences of opinion. Trustees shall refrain 
from making discrediting comments about others, engaging in unwarranted 
criticism, or taking private action that could compromise the integrity or 
authority of the Board.”  

-- SD 44, North Vancouver 

RESPECT 
Respect includes reference to criteria on provisions for respectful workplaces and relationships with 
others, and anti-racism, reconciliation, and relations with local First Nations. This also includes 
respecting differing views and being prepared for board meetings and committee work. Boards may 
wish to emphasize respect in their codes of conduct: 

“Trustees shall represent the Board in all Board-related matters with proper 
decorum and respect for others.”  

-- SD 63, Saanich 

RESPONSIBILITY 
In addition to the other responsibilities referenced in the provincial criteria, responsibility also includes 
upholding board decisions and ensuring effective stewardship of board resources in the best interests of 
students. Boards may wish to directly include provisions on responsibility such as: 

“I will recognize that, although I am elected from a particular area of the 
District, my responsibility is to ensure that decisions are made in the best 
interests of the District as a whole.”  

-- SD 6, Rocky Mountain 
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ALIGNMENT WITH EXISTING PROVINCIAL AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION 
Boards and trustees have legal responsibilities as set out in the School Act and under common law. 
Additionally, boards and trustees are subject to, and must comply with, all applicable provincial and 
federal laws. This includes the Criminal Code, Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, 
Human Rights Code, Workers’ Compensation Act, and other applicable legislation. Boards may wish to 
include relevant provisions such as: 

“Trustees shall abide by the policies of the Board, all applicable legislation and 
regulations, in particular the School Act and the Oath of Office.” 

-- SD 63, Saanich 

PROVISIONS ON: 
RESPECTFUL WORKPLACES & RELATIONSHIPS WITH OTHERS 
In addition to the guidance on the principles of respect and relationships, this provision relates to 
compliance with the Human Rights Code and the Workers’ Compensation Act. As the employer, boards 
must work with staff, students, and communities abiding by applicable legislation, and supporting safe, 
inclusive workplaces and communities. Boards may wish to include provisions such as: 

“This commitment includes… appropriate decorum in individual and group 
behaviour and fair and respectful treatment of students, parents, staff, 
members of the community and other Board members.”  

-- SD 35, Langley 

ANTI-RACISM, RECONCILIATION & RELATIONS WITH LOCAL FIRST NATIONS 
Boards have an important role in addressing systemic racism and promoting an active culture of anti-
racism in schools. To uphold the Human Rights Code and support safe, inclusive educational 
communities, boards may wish to integrate the principles from the Declaration on the Rights of 
Indigenous Peoples Act and the Ministry’s K-12 Anti-Racism Action Plan into their codes through 
provisions such as: 

 “Trustees will recognize their duty to represent and advocate for the best 
interests of learners in the community, including Indigenous communities and 
First Nations on whose traditional territories our schools operate.”  

-- SD 37, Delta 

ACCEPTABLE USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA 
Boards may wish to directly include provisions on acceptable use of social media (including 
confidentiality, respect, conflict of interest) or reference their communications policy in their code of 
conduct. Provisions could include: 

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/erase/documents/k-12-anti-racism-strategy.pdf
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“The Board of Education remains committed to responsible digital citizenship 
and to minimizing the risks associated with the use of electronic 
communications systems and access to social media.”  

-- SD 6, Rocky Mountain 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR BREACHES AND SANCTIONS, PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY 
Misconduct and breaches may affect boards’ abilities to deliver on their core responsibilities to offer an 
educational program and their ability to support safe and inclusive schools and workplaces. It is best to 
ensure boards take a proactive approach by establishing policies outlining processes to address 
breaches as well as steps to restore relationships after the occurrence of a breach.  

When there are issues with misconduct, it is best to develop solutions to resolve issues early and with 
measures that are commensurate with the underlying factual context. When appropriate, boards could 
also take an incremental approach (i.e., having informal complaint processes and mediated 
conversations before a formal complaint process is triggered). A board may wish to seek legal advice 
depending on the nature of the complaint. 

If proactive measures do not result in changed behaviour, disciplinary measures for breaches may be 
imposed in a remedial and restorative manner, reflecting the seriousness of the breach. These measures 
may include the offending trustee: 

• Writing a letter of apology; 
• Participating in a restorative justice process; 
• Participating in specific training, coaching, or counselling as directed by the board; 
• Being subject to a motion of censure passed by a majority of the voting trustees at a closed (i.e., 

in-camera) board meeting; or 
• Being removed from one, some, or all board committees or other appointments by a majority of 

voting trustees at an in-camera board meeting. 2 
o It is important to note that, except as expressly permitted by the School Act, a board’s 

authority does not extend so far as to effectively remove a trustee from their elected 
office.   

The board may, at its discretion and by resolution of the voting trustees, make public the outcome(s) of 
the official complaint process if the board considers this reasonable and appropriate. However, the 
board should be careful to avoid disclosing details that identify third parties or disclose confidential 
information. The board must comply with its obligations to protect the privacy of others under the 
School Act and the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 

Boards should act in accordance with principles of administrative fairness, which includes avoiding bias 
(including the perception of bias). The Ombudsperson’s Office has developed the Complaint Handling 

 
2 The imposition of a disciplinary measure barring a trustee from attending all, or part of, a board meeting shall be 
deemed to be the authorization for the trustee to be absent from the meeting, and therefore not in violation of 
the School Act regarding absences from meetings. 

https://bcombudsperson.ca/guide/complaint-handling-guide/
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Guide as a resource on the topic of fairness. Furthermore, the Public Authority Consultation and Training 
Team in the Ombudsperson’s Office is available to provide support to public bodies, including boards of 
education, to ensure they incorporate and reflect administrative fairness principles. Boards may also 
contact the BCSTA for resources. 

MECHANISMS TO REGULARLY REVIEW AND AFFIRM THE CODE  
Effective codes are living documents that are strengthened through regular review and affirmation. 
Boards may wish to include requirements such as: 

“The Board shall review this policy within six months of the Inaugural Board 
Meeting.”  

-- SD 44, North Vancouver 

BOARD TRAINING, INCLUDING WITH TRUSTEE ONBOARDING 
In addition to regular review and affirmation, board training strengthens the effectiveness and 
usefulness of codes of conduct. Boards may wish to include training provisions in their codes of conduct, 
such as: 

“Trustees will endeavour to take advantage of educational conferences, 
workshops, and training sessions made available by local or provincial 
affiliations. Through participating in professional development opportunities, 
Trustees can enhance their knowledge of Trustee roles and responsibilities and 
become acquainted with current educational topics and trends.”  

-- SD 44, North Vancouver 

The BCSTA provides sessions on governance and codes of conduct, and will also offer requested 
assistance or advice to boards. Please contact the BCSTA directly for support. 

In addition, the Ministry and BCSTA have developed an onboarding approach to support trustees in their 
role. This training includes sessions on six key areas: Governance, Legislation, Roles and Responsibilities; 
Relations with First Nations; Working with People; Values-Based, Evidence-Informed Decision Making; 
Planning for Student Success; and Financial and Resource Management. Boards and trustees can find 
more information on BCSTA’s HUB, in the Virtual Orientations section. 

PLAIN LANGUAGE 
When revising a code of conduct, boards may wish to promote accessibility by presenting information in 
clear, understandable language. In addition to defining certain terms and refraining from using jargon, 
some boards have also written their codes with plain language and “I” statements. For example:  

“I will do my best to protect, conserve, and advance public education, giving to 
the children of this District educational facilities and services that are as 
complete as it is possible to provide.”  
-- SD 6, Rocky Mountain 

https://bcombudsperson.ca/guide/complaint-handling-guide/
https://bcombudsperson.ca/fairness-education-resources/fairness-consultation/
https://bcombudsperson.ca/fairness-education-resources/fairness-consultation/
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbcstahub.org%2FEmailNotificationLink.po%3Fhandle%3D14813919%26name%3DEvent_Information&data=05%7C01%7CEsther.Rzeplinski%40gov.bc.ca%7Cb0594f9b429d4eb282ea08db1b3f32d5%7C6fdb52003d0d4a8ab036d3685e359adc%7C0%7C0%7C638133730735608479%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=feFuYCzYO15wG9HC7cVnLUcWh78xq4ELr%2B0FgSv6ycs%3D&reserved=0
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To support the principles underpinning codes of conduct and to promote 
consistency in the application of codes across the province, the Ministry and 
BCSTA encourage all boards to review their codes of conduct in accordance 

with these criteria guidelines. Please submit your updated codes to 
EDUC.Governance.Legislation@gov.bc.ca by April 30, 2024. 

mailto:EDUC.Governance.Legislation@gov.bc.ca


  

 

 

 

9 

 

APPENDIX A: CODES OF CONDUCT 

School District Code of Conduct3 Updated 

SD05 Southeast Kootenay Policy 4 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2021/08 

SD06 Rocky Mountain Policy 1500 - Trustee Role, Responsibility and Code of Ethics 2021/11 

SD08 Kootenay Lake Policy 130: Trustee Code of Professional and Ethical Conduct 2023/01 

SD10 Arrow Lakes Policy 120 – Governance (Section 4.0 Board of Education 
Code of Conduct) 

2017/05 

SD19 Revelstoke Policy 2.2 - Composition, Roles and Conduct 2014/10 

SD20 Kootenay-Columbia Policy 5.12 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2018/01 

SD22 Vernon Policy 130 - Trustee Code of Ethics and Conduct 2022/09 

SD23 Central Okanagan 125 - Trustee Code of Ethics  2021/09 

SD27 Cariboo-Chilcotin Policy 130 – Trustee Code of Conduct  2019/11 

SD28 Quesnel Policy 107 - Trustee Code of Ethics 2023/01 

SD33 Chilliwack 130 - Trustee Code of Conduct  Separate Policy – 131 
Trustee Conflict of Interest 

2022/03 

SD35 Langley Policy 4 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2020/12 

SD34 Abbotsford Policy 6 – Trustee Code of Ethics 2013/10 

SD36 Surrey Policy 2100 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2018/01 

SD37 Delta Policy 4 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2022/06 

SD38 Richmond Policy 200 – Trustee Role, Responsibilities and Code of Ethics  2008/09 

SD39 Vancouver Policy 4 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2021/12 

SD40 New Westminster Policy 4 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2017/05 

SD41 Burnaby Policy 1.05 Trustee Code of Conduct and Ethics 2021/04 

SD42 Maple Ridge-Pitt 
Meadows 

Policy 2919 - Trustees’ Code of Conduct 2019/12 

SD43 Coquitlam Policy 4 - Trustee Code of Ethics 2019/02 

SD44 North Vancouver Policy 108 - Trustee Code of Ethics 2018/09 

SD45 West Vancouver Policy 108 – Trustee Code of Ethics 2022/06 

SD46 Sunshine Coast Policy 3 – Role of Trustee   2022/10 

 
3 Generally captured as policy. As per SD 20, policies are statements of principle whereas bylaws are legally 
enforceable resolutions of the board. 

https://www.sd5.bc.ca/AboutUs/BoardOfEducation/Policy%20Manual/bph2021/Documents/Policy%204%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
https://www.sd6.bc.ca/board-of-education/policy-practice/5915
https://www.sd8.bc.ca/sites/default/files/documents/2023-01/130%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Ethical%20and%20Professional%20Conduct%20%282023.01.10.SB%29.pdf
https://sd10.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/120-Governance-Jan-31-05-09.pdf
https://sd10.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/120-Governance-Jan-31-05-09.pdf
https://www.sd19.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2015/02/2.2-Board-Composition-Roles-Conduct.pdf
https://22.files.edl.io/c709/03/28/22/223005-5764b6d6-d0be-4583-9152-594f3d9af73c.pdf
https://sd22bc.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/35489/?preview=35492
http://www.sd23.bc.ca/Board/Policies/Section%201%20%20Board%20of%20Education/125.pdf
https://sd27storage.blob.core.windows.net/media/Default/frf/5/Policy%20130%20-%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
https://bcsd28.civicweb.net/FileStorage/431C8E53C0244EA9B5AC4DAAB36F4B68-Policy%20107%20-%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Ethics.pdf
https://www.sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2022-03/130%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
https://sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2022-02/131%20Trustee%20Conflict%20of%20Interest.pdf
https://sd33.bc.ca/sites/sd33.bc.ca/files/2022-02/131%20Trustee%20Conflict%20of%20Interest.pdf
https://www.sd35.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2020/12/Policy_4__Trustee_Code_Of_Conduct.pdf
https://www.abbyschools.ca/sites/default/files/Board%20Policy%206%20-%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Ethics_0.pdf
https://sbsurreystor.blob.core.windows.net/media/Default/medialib/2100-policy.9d668b2589.pdf
https://district.public.deltasd.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2017/07/Policy-4-Trustee-Code-of-Conduct-Jun-2022.pdf
https://sd38.bc.ca/sites/default/files/2019-12/policy_200_trustee_role_responsibilities_and_code_of_ethics.pdf
https://sbvsbstorage.blob.core.windows.net/docs/9ef1c8f6-f6fc-43d0-a99e-493fd7f43dcc_04-Policy4-trustee-code-of-conduct.pdf
https://newwestschools.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Trustee-Code-of-Conduct-170530.pdf
https://burnabyschools.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/policy-1.05-trustee-code-of-conduct-and-ethics.pdf
https://www.sd42.ca/assets/media/2919-Trustees-Code-of-Conduct.pdf
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Board/Policies/Policies/POLICY%204%20-%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Ethics.pdf
https://www.sd44.ca/Board/PoliciesProcedures/Series100/Policy108/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://westvancouverschools.ca/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/Policy5.pdf
https://sd46.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/3_role_of_the_trustee.pdf
https://www.sd20.bc.ca/apps/pages/index.jsp?uREC_ID=1095780&type=d&pREC_ID=1370147
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School District Code of Conduct3 Updated 

SD47 Powell River Policy 4: Trustee Code of Conduct 2022/05 

SD48 Sea to Sky Policy 204 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2022/03 

SD49 Central Coast Policy 120: Trustee Code of Conduct 2018/04 

SD50 Haida Gwaii Policy 2.0 - Governance 2018/09 

SD51 Boundary Policy 1110 - Trustee Code of Ethics 2018/03 

SD52 Prince Rupert 6140 - Role of the Trustee and Trustee Code of Conduct 
Policy 

2020/10 

SD53 Okanagan Similkameen Policy A-4 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2019/10 

SD54 Bulkley Valley Policy 1.180 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2021/04 

SD57 Prince George Policy 4 – Trustee Code of Conduct  2022/06 

SD58 Nicola-Similkameen Policy 205.3 - Trustee Code of Ethics and Conduct 2020/01 

SD59 Peace River South Policy 2150 – Roles and Responsibilities of the Board 2020/01 

SD60 Peace River North Policy 1001 - Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and 
Trustees 

2021/08 

SD61 Greater Victoria Policy 8251 - Trustees’ Code of Conduct 2022/05  

SD62 Sooke Policy A-105 – Trustee Code of Conduct 2021/01 

SD63 Saanich Policy 13 – Trustee Code of Conduct  2020/11 

SD64 Gulf Islands Policy 107 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2018/06 

SD67 Okanagan Skaha Policy 4 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2019/11 

SD68 Nanaimo-Ladysmith Policy 2.3 - Code of Conduct 2012/12 

SD69 Qualicum Trustee Code of Ethics included in Trustee Handbook (and 
Bylaw) 

2022/09 

SD70 Pacific Rim Policy 112 - School Trustee Code of Conduct 2022/10 

SD71 Comox Valley Policy 4 – Trustee Code of Conduct   2023/03 

SD72 Campbell River Board Governance Policy 7 – Trustee Code of Conduct 2017/10 

SD73 Kamloops/ Thompson Policy 4 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2019/06 

SD74 Gold Trail Policy 1.100 Trustee Code of Conduct 2022/10 

SD75 Mission Policy 1.2 Trustee Code of Ethical Conduct 2022/06 

SD78 Fraser-Cascade Bylaw 17 - Trustee Code of Conduct; Conflict of interest in 
stand alone Bylaw #7 

2018/03 

SD79 Cowichan Valley Policy 4 – Trustee Code of Conduct 2018/09 

https://www.sd47.bc.ca/Board/Policies/boardpolicy/Policy%204%20-%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1WiyWC2ZEaT7c2zx91RMlBTGLyJgia8J4eWPKrtW9tRM/edit
https://www.sd49.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/120-Trustee-Code-of-Conduct.pdf
https://sd50.bc.ca/document/a-2-board-governance/
https://www.sd51.bc.ca/wp-content/district/policies/governance-and-communications/SD51-Policy-1110-Code-of-Ethics-Reviewed-2018.pdf
https://www.rupertschools.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/role-of-the-trustee-policy.pdf
https://www.rupertschools.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/role-of-the-trustee-policy.pdf
https://22.files.edl.io/4832/12/09/19/183952-96212261-12e8-469c-a0c1-b9e467570c34.pdf
https://22.files.edl.io/d339/05/12/21/183752-028ebc56-e434-4630-9e57-e8c530802946.pdf
https://www.sd57.bc.ca/Board/Policies/Policylisting/Documents/4%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
https://www.sd58.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/205.3-TRUSTEE-CODE-OF-ETHICS-AND-CONDUCT.pdf
https://www.sd59.bc.ca/sites/default/files/2020-01/2150%20Roles%20and%20Responsibilities%20of%20the%20Board-Jan2020.pdf
https://policy.prn.bc.ca/board_policy/1001-roles-and-responsibilities-of-the-board-and-trustees/
https://policy.prn.bc.ca/board_policy/1001-roles-and-responsibilities-of-the-board-and-trustees/
https://www.sd61.bc.ca/our-district/documents/name/policy-8251-trustees-code-of-conduct/
https://www.sookeschools.ca/sites/default/files/2021-01/A-105%20Policy%20-%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Conduct_0.pdf
https://www.saanichschools.ca/saanich-schools/policies-procedures/board-policy-handbook/policy-13
https://sd64.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/policy-107-180801.pdf
https://22.files.edl.io/c3ed/06/07/22/214903-bdb73651-ce08-4c5d-b95c-501908dc6b86.pdf
https://www.sd68.bc.ca/document/2-3-code-of-conduct/
https://www.sd69.bc.ca/Board/Guiding%20Principles/Documents/Trustee%20Handbook%20-%20November%202022.pdf
https://www.sd69.bc.ca/Board/Policies-and-Bylaws/Bylaws-Policies-and-Administrative-Procedures/00%20Bylaws/0001%20-%20Board%20of%20Education.pdf
https://sd70storage.blob.core.windows.net/media/Default/medialib/112-school-trustee-code-of-conduct-oct-15-final.7fc5ca5267.pdf
https://www.comoxvalleyschools.ca/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/BoardPolicyHandbook.pdf
https://crsd72storage.blob.core.windows.net/media/Default/medialib/trustee-code-of-conduct.4651981314.pdf
https://bcsd73.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/94153/?preview=94159
https://sd74.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/9/?preview=82167
https://www.mpsd.ca/Board/Policies/governance/Documents/1.2%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Ethical%20Conduct.pdf
https://sd78frasercascade.sharepoint.com/sites/78Website/Bylaws/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2F78Website%2FBylaws%2FBylaw%2017%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Conduct%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2F78Website%2FBylaws&p=true&ga=1
https://sd78frasercascade.sharepoint.com/sites/78Website/Bylaws/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2F78Website%2FBylaws%2FBylaw%207%20Conflict%20of%20Interest%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2F78Website%2FBylaws&p=true&ga=1
https://sd79.bc.ca/documents/2018/05/policy-4-trustee-code-of-conduct.pdf/
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School District Code of Conduct3 Updated 

SD81 Fort Nelson Policy 1111 - Trustee Code of Ethics; Policy 1112 – 
Expectations of Trustees 

2015/03 

SD82 Coast Mountains Policy 5010 - Trustee Code of Ethics 2021/12 

SD83 North Okanagan-
Shuswap 

Policy 133 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2022/04 

SD84 Vancouver Island West Policy 4 - Trustee Code of Ethics 2022/6 

SD85 Vancouver Island North Policy 1-03 - Trustee Code of Conduct Sanctions 2021/05 

SD87 Stikine Policy 3 – Role of Board – District Expectations - Trustees 2009/06 

SD91 Nechako Lake Policy 200.2 - Trustee Code of Conduct  2022/09 

SD92 Nisga’a Policy 4 - Trustee Code of Conduct 2020/12 

SD93 CSF Code of Ethics 2018/06 
  

https://www.sd81.bc.ca/wp-content/SBO/policy/1000/Policy%201111%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Ethics.pdf
https://www.sd81.bc.ca/wp-content/SBO/policy/1000/Policy%201112%20Expectations%20of%20Trustees.pdf
https://www.sd81.bc.ca/wp-content/SBO/policy/1000/Policy%201112%20Expectations%20of%20Trustees.pdf
http://cmsd.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/CMSD82-Policy-5010-Trustee-Code-of-Ethics.pdf
https://sd83bcca.sharepoint.com/Shared%20on%20Website/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2FShared%20on%20Website%2FPolicy%2FSection%20100%20%2D%20Board%20Governance%20and%20Foundational%20Commitments%2F133%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Conduct%20%2Epdf&parent=%2FShared%20on%20Website%2FPolicy%2FSection%20100%20%2D%20Board%20Governance%20and%20Foundational%20Commitments&p=true&ga=1
https://sd84.bc.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/Policy-4-Trustee-Code-of-Ethics-1.pdf
https://www.sd85.bc.ca/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/1-03-Trustee-Code-of-Conduct-May-21.pdf
https://sd87.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/?preview=135
https://sd91.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/22628&splitscreen=true/?preview=22630&splitscreen=true&attachmenturl=%2Fdocument%2F22964
https://www.nisgaa.bc.ca/links/PLCY-SD92_fmybwvvb0l.pdf
https://www.csf.bc.ca/board-of-trustees/code-of-ethics/
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APPENDIX B: FURTHER RESOURCES 

 

British Columbia School Trustees Association [BCSTA]. (n.d.a). Our mission. British Columbia School 
Trustees Association. https://bcsta.org/about/about-trustees/  

British Columbia School Trustees Association [BCSTA]. (n.d.b). Rights & Responsibilities: A Resource 
Guide for School Trustees. British Columbia School Trustees Association.  

British Columbia School Trustees Association [BCSTA]. (n.d.b). What do trustees do? British Columbia 
School Trustees Association. https://bcsta.org/about/about-trustees/  

Cuthbertson, S. (n.d.) A Highlight History of British Columbia Schools. 
https://www.royalbcmuseum.bc.ca/exhibits/tbird-park/html/present/stann/sb5/sb5hhist.pdf 

Education Act, Statutes of Alberta (2012, Chapter E-0.3). Retrieved from the Queen’s Printer website: 
E00P3.pdf (alberta.ca) 

Education Act, Statutes of New Brunswick (1997, c.E-1.12). Retrieved from the Acts and regulation 
website: Education Act (gnb.ca) 

Education Act, Statutes of Northwest Territories (1995, c.28). Retrieved from the justice website: 
Education Act (gov.nt.ca) 

Education Act, Statutes of Ontario (1990, c.E.2). retrieved from Ontario Laws website: Education Act, 
R.S.O. 1990, c. E.2 (ontario.ca) 

Erwin, P. M. (2011). Corporate codes of conduct: The effects of code content and quality on ethical 
performance. Journal of Business Ethics, 99(4), 535-548. 

Feuerstein, A. (2009). School board ethics and effectiveness. Planning and Changing, 40:1/2, 3-34.  

Galway, G., Sheppard, B., Wiens, J., & Brown, J. (2013). The impact of centralization on local school 
district governance in Canada. Canadian Journal of Educational Administration and Policy, 145, 
1-34. https://journalhosting.ucalgary.ca/index.php/cjeap/article/view/42852 

Government of British Columbia., British Columbia School trustees Association [BCSTA]. (2018, 
November 30). https://bcsta.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/2018-MOE-BCSTA-MOU-
WEB.jpg 

Government of British Columbia. School Act, RSBC 1996, C.412. 
https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/96412_00_multi  

https://bcsta.org/about/about-trustees/
https://bcsta.org/about/about-trustees/
https://www.royalbcmuseum.bc.ca/exhibits/tbird-park/html/present/stann/sb5/sb5hhist.pdf
https://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/Acts/E00P3.pdf
https://laws.gnb.ca/en/showfulldoc/cs/E-1.12/#anchorga:s_32
https://www.justice.gov.nt.ca/en/files/legislation/education/education.a.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02#BK201
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02#BK201
https://journalhosting.ucalgary.ca/index.php/cjeap/article/view/42852
https://bcsta.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/2018-MOE-BCSTA-MOU-WEB.jpg
https://bcsta.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/2018-MOE-BCSTA-MOU-WEB.jpg
https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/96412_00_multi
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Government of Ontario. (2021, November 02). Consultation: Strengthening accountability for school 
board trustees. http://www.ontario.ca/page/consultation-strengthening-accountability-school-
board-trustees  

Johnson, P. A. (2013). Effective Board Leadership: Factors Associated with Student Achievement. Journal 
of School Leadership, 23(3), 456–489. https://doi.org/10.1177/105268461302300302 

Hardy, L. (2004, May). The ethical school board. American School Board Journal, 16-19. 

Hill, P. T., Warner-King, K., Campbell, C., McElroy, M., & Munoz-Colon, I. (2002). Big City School Boards: 
Problems and Options. https://eric.ed.gov/?id=ED475193 

Leithwood, K., Seashore, K., Anderson, S., & Wahlstrom, K. (2004). Review of research: How leadership 
influences student learning. https://hdl.handle.net/11299/2035 

Maharaj, S. (2020) From Oversight to Advocacy: An Examination of School-Board Leadership. Leadership 
and Policy in Schools, 19:3, 431-443, DOI: 10.1080/15700763.2019.1585548 

Maloney, R. (2020, June 1). Our ‘big ideas’ of board governance. National School Boards Association. 
https://www.nsba.org:443/ASBJ/2020/June/four-big-ideas  

National School Boards Association. (2019). Becoming a better school board member: A guide to 
effective school board service (Fourth Edition).  NSBA. 

New Jersey School Boards Association [NJSBA] (n.d.). Code of Ethics for School Board Members. 
https://www.njsba.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/code-of-ethics.pdf  

Ontario Regulation 246/18: Members of School Boards – Code of Conduct. 
https://www.ontariocanada.com/registry/view.do?postingId=38892&language=en  

Piscitelli, A., Perella, A. M., & Payler, A. (2022). Public Expectations of School Board Trustees. Canadian 
Journal of Educational Administration and Policy/Revue canadienne en administration et 
politique de l’éducation, (198), 19-34. https://doi.org/10.7202/1086425ar 

Plough, B. (2014). School Board Governance and Student Achievement: School Board Members' 
Perceptions of Their Behaviors and Beliefs. Educational Leadership and Administration: Teaching 
and Program Development, 25, 41-53. https://eric.ed.gov/?id=EJ1028871  

Rice, D., Delagardelle, M.L., Buckton, M., Jons, C.K., Lueders, W.J., Vens, M.J., Joyce, B., Wolf, J., & 
Weathersby, J. (2000). The Lighthouse Inquiry: School Board/Superintendent Team Behaviors in 
School Districts with Extreme Differences in Student Achievement. 
https://eric.ed.gov/?id=ED453172  

http://www.ontario.ca/page/consultation-strengthening-accountability-school-board-trustees
http://www.ontario.ca/page/consultation-strengthening-accountability-school-board-trustees
https://doi.org/10.1177/105268461302300302
https://eric.ed.gov/?id=ED475193
https://hdl.handle.net/11299/2035
https://www.nsba.org/ASBJ/2020/June/four-big-ideas
https://www.njsba.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/code-of-ethics.pdf
https://www.ontariocanada.com/registry/view.do?postingId=38892&language=en
https://doi.org/10.7202/1086425ar
https://eric.ed.gov/?id=EJ1028871
https://eric.ed.gov/?id=ED453172
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Riede, P. (2004). Board ethics: in states and communities, the ongoing struggle to codify appropriate 
behavior of school board members. School Administrator, 61(8), 20-28. 

State of New Jersey Department of Education (n.d.). School ethics commission. School ethics act. 
https://www.nj.gov/education/ethics/act.shtml  

The Institute for a Competitive Workforce (ICW), The U.S. Chamber of Commerce, The National 
Chamber Foundation. School Board Case Studies. (2012, May). School Board Case Studies. 
https://www.uschamberfoundation.org/sites/default/files/publication/edu/School%20Board%2
0Case%20Studies.pdf 

The Public Schools Act, Consolidated Acts (2022, C.C.S.M c. P250). Retrieved from Manitoba Laws: 
C.C.S.M. c. P250 (gov.mb.ca) 

 

https://www.nj.gov/education/ethics/act.shtml
https://www.uschamberfoundation.org/sites/default/files/publication/edu/School%20Board%20Case%20Studies.pdf
https://www.uschamberfoundation.org/sites/default/files/publication/edu/School%20Board%20Case%20Studies.pdf
https://web2.gov.mb.ca/laws/statutes/ccsm/p250e.php


BCSTA Learning Series: 

 

BCSTA has created a day long workshop as part of the Leadership for Continuous 
Improvement series (draft attached), this is an exciting opportunity for our Branch to 
learn together and will address topics that have come up at our branch 
meetings.  Planning and hosting for this training involved a unique 
collaborative: Ministry, FNESC, BC Child & Youth Representative and BCSTA.  The focus 
will be on trustees responsibilities regarding FESL and an in depth look at understanding 
local data regarding indigenous student learning.   

Seven of the eight BCSTA branches are already committed to the series.   Our Branch 
has been offered the choice of one of the following days in early 2024, January 20, 
February 17 or March 9 (all Saturdays).  

We will need to decide on a location too, Squamish, lower Sunshine Coast, Powell River 
or other? 

There will be no cost to districts for the speakers or the coordination.  We could choose 
to equally share the cost of travel between our three districts, and the cost of catering 
for the day.  

Please let me know your thoughts about the training, and specifically:  

 Date for the learning session 
 Location for the learning session (can your branch provide the facility?) 

Also, please let me know if you can help with the survey.  

Warm regards,  

Stacia.  

Stacia Leech 

Vice Chair  

BCSTA South Coast Branch President 

District PAC trustee liaison 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 46 – SUNSHINE COAST 

Excellence in all we do! 
 

Email: stleech@sd46.bc.ca 

mailto:stleech@sd46.bc.ca


 

Learning Series 
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BCSTA LEARNING SERIES 
 

“LEADERSHIP FOR CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT” 
______________________________ 

 

PROFESSIONAL LEARNING AND BUSINESS AGENDA 

 
Draft Agenda 

Coffee and Breakfast 

8:00am Registration Opens  

8:30am Introductions and Opening Local Elders 

9:30 – 10:15am Framework for Continuous Improvement 
‘Trustee talk’; Activation activity 

Questions to be asked throughout the year                                                                
Data and evidence, is it working?  

Current ministry focus…why? 
 

Tracy Loffler 

Gordon Li 

10:15-10:30am Break  

10:30–12:00pm How Are We doing? 
Data indicators 

Children and Youth in Care 
The Framework 

 
Local Information 
Systemic Issues 

FNESC; Connor and 
team (TBD) 
 
 
 

MECC: Brad Baker 
or Denise Augustine 

12:00pm Lunch  

1:00 – 2:30pm RCY on Students in Care 
Empathy Stores; children in context 

Children in Care – Mental Health 
Schools are such critical places 

Intervention for improved outcomes for Children in Care (FESL) 
 

Dr. Charlesworth 

2:30-2:45pm Break  

2:45–4:00pm BCSTA Knowledge Series and other initiatives? 
Interactive work sessions leading to possible action in their 

districts (Dovetail with assigned groups) 

Working with of series content 
How to actualize the learning 

Tracy Loffler 

Gordon Li 

4:00pm End of Day  
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Steve Hopkins

From: steve.hopkins@sd47.bc.ca

Subject: FW: Vista branch meeting 

On Jul 3, 2023, at 11:05 AM, Janice Caton <Janice.Caton@sd71.bc.ca> wrote: 

Good morning Dale 
I hope this finds you well  
Our next vista branch meeting is scheduled for Oct 13 and 14 in Nanaimo  
We would love to have your join us and I will be sending out our vista updates and information to you 
and your board if you will to join our meeting  
The time is Friday from 1-4 with a dinner break- then 6-8:30 and then again Saturday from 9-2 with 
breakfast and lunch included  
If you any questions please feel free to ask me  
Take care  
My cell is (250) 897-0756  
Respectfully  
Janice Caton 
President Vancouver Island School Trustees Association  

Sent from my iPhone 



2023-06-16 

 
 
 

 

JULY 

 CSBA Conference 
 
SEPTEMBER 

 Receive Enhancing Student Learning Report 

 Review School Growth Plans 

 Review Audit Findings Report 

 Adopt Annual Financial Statements 

 Adopt Minor Capital Projects  

 Review Executive Compensation Disclosure  

 Recognize Orange Shirt Day – Every Child Matters 
 
OCTOBER  

 Recognize World Teachers’ Day 
 

NOVEMBER 

 Election of Board Chairperson & Vice Chairperson 

 Election of Provincial Council and BCPSEA Representatives 
 
DECEMBER  

 Receive Statement of Financial Information 

  Approve Trustee Appointments to Committees and 
Community Liaison Groups 

 Attend BCSTA Trustee Academy 
 
JANUARY        

 Receive Strategic & School Growth Plan Interim Report  

 Review Trustee Remuneration 

 Submit Financial Disclosure Forms by January 15th 

 Recognize Literacy Week  
 
FEBRUARY 

 Adopt Amended Annual Budget 

 Review School Calendar Consultation Information 

 Chairperson – Represent Board at Ministry of Education 
Annual Partner Liaison Meeting 

 Represent Board at BCSTA Provincial Council 

 Recognize Pink Shirt Day – Anti Bullying 
 
MARCH 

 Approve School Calendar Submission 

 Review Provincial Motions for BCSTA AGM 

 Approve Budget Process  
 
 

APRIL 

 Review Government Grant Information 

 Attend BCSTA AGM 

 Recognize Anniversary of Tla’amin Treaty 
 
MAY 

 Review Annual Facility Grant Plans 

 Recognize Mental Health Week 

 Attend May Day Celebration 

 Attend District Track and Field Event 
 
JUNE 

 Adopt Annual Budget 

 Adopt Major Capital Projects  

 Receive Carbon Neutral Action Report  

 Review Strategic Plan 

 Review Board Meeting Calendar  

 Review Board Work Plan 

 Recognize National Indigenous Peoples Day 

 Recognize Children and Youth in Care Week 

 Attend Graduation Ceremony 
 
 
 

 

ANNUAL BOARD WORK PLAN 2023-2024 

OTHER ITEMS SCHEDULED AS NEEDED 

• Review Board Policies and Bylaws 
• Review and Approve Capital Project Bylaws 
• Trustee & Superintendent Evaluations 
• Hear Appeals as needed 
• Represent Board at BCSTA Branch Meetings 
• Represent Board at Provincial Council and BCPSEA 

Meetings and Events 
• Attend School Functions 
• Attend Employee Recognition Events 
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